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Corporate Information
2T A H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Remuneration Committee

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Nomination Committee

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Somerley Capital Limited

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited —
Macau

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Corporate Information [continued]
AT EHE)
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ELRT(hE)BRA

China Construction Bank, Shenzhen Branch, Gongming Sub-branch FEREZETEI DT AT

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Ltd.
China CITIC Bank, Shenzhen Branch, Longhua Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN PRC

TK Technology Park

Tangjia Community
Gongming Sub-district Office
Guangming New District
Shenzhen, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B
Hi-Tech Industrial Centre

No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock code: 2283)

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.tkmold.com
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Financial Highlights

MBEBRE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 Change
T T 2
Result 4
Revenue WA 1,338,920 1,197,852 11.8%
Profit attributable to owners of RNATHAE AEAE
the Company Y ) 153,923 121,348 26.9%
Basic earnings per share (HK dollars) BREREBF (FET) 0.19 0.22 -13.6%
Proposed final dividend per share BEZERREARE
(HK cents) GEAL) 5.0 1.8 177.8%
Financial position B AR SR
Net current assets mBEERE 241,137 217,797 10.7%
Gross profit margin F F = 27.3% 27.7% -0.4pp"
Net profit margin 5 R & 11.5% 10.1% 1.4pp*
Current ratio (Note 1) BV (A1) 143.1% 141.3% 1.8pp*
Quick ratio (Note 2) B K (T 72) 100.4% 106.4% -6.0pp”
Gearing ratio (Note 3) BEAEBLREHFE3) 24.9% 45.7% -20.8pp*
Return on equity (Note 4) & 7 [ ¥ 2 (ff 3£ 4) 29.2% 32.8% -3.6pp*
Return on assets (Note 5) BERWRE(HiE5) 13.5% 12.7% 0.8pp*
Inventory turnover days (Note 6) GFERERE(Mite) 83 74
Trade receivable turnover days EEY e NG PN
(Note 7) (Htat7) 49 47
Trade payable turnover days Z 5 EN R EEE R
(Note 8) (Btits) 62 58
Notes: o
(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and (1) T8I F T B) & ZE B % B B (& 5 1557 15
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. BT L 100%51 5 -
(2)  Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current — (2)  FEILLFREEBEEREGFRE X B A &
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%. A5 FT 17 (8 T LA 100% 515 °
(3 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and — (3) ~ EER B FREBEBFE A #E m A K
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. FT 1518 F X 100% 51 & -
(4)  Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and ~ (4) AL [ F 1L 3 f2 i 7 12 a I B LA 4 2 AR BE S
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. HATRE LA 100% 515 ©
(5)  Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and ~ (5) & [0 1L 3 ¥z i 7% 12 )i B B LA 652 4R BR 5
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. HEFT 15 (8 X 100% 515 -
(6)  Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory — (6) 77 B /A B X H T3 1% 77 B F 194 0k UL 5 B+
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. JE R85 & A BRI 365 K51 H »
(7)  Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade  (7) B ZEN L IH B HEX E T F 19 8 5 JE WK
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. HER X F B FE RN B FIA65 KT E -
(8)  Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables — (8) ~ H ZIETH BB BX )iz F 19 8 5 &1 5
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. IE R L B AF JE A B B AN R LA 365K AT
=,
# pp refers to percentage point(s). # PP 1§ B 77 & o



Financial Highlights [continued]
MBEE(]|)

Five Year Revenue — By business segments

—_— S5FEWA—REK DB
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2010 2011 2012 2018 2014

m Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing m Total

RARIE RSB ELE ast
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHT FAT FET
Mold fabrication RASE 261,264 378,286 356,245 476,024 540,259

Plastic components VAR RS

manufacturing 274,840 403,464 739,740 721,828 798,661
Total BEt 536,104 781,750 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920
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Chairman’s Statement [continued)]

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“Board”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “TK Group” or the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014 (the “Year under Review”).

Being one of the world’s leading providers of one-stop integrated plastics
solutions, TK Group provides customised, cost effective and high-
precision products and services to a diverse range of internationally
renowned companies, including one-stop plastics solutions covering
product design and optimisation, mold fabrication, plastic injection
production, secondary processing services and final assembly. With its
presence in the mold industries for more than 30 years, TK Group has
gained the trust from international customers based on its focus on the
development strategy of high-precision molds as well as high-quality
products. It has also successfully penetrated into certain high growth
industries which have extremely stringent demands on quality of
products, including consumer electronics, household electrical
appliances, automobiles and medical and health care industries.

The year 2014 represents a year that TK Group implements its stragtegic
layout. With the corporate mission of “Keeping our Customer Successful”
and in response to the development opportunities in industry, we have
made strategic product restructuring through acquisition, and proactively
promoted the development of the related products in mobile phones and
wearable devices, medical and health care industries during the year. In
addition, we have successfully entered into cooperation with various
renowned brands in the wearable devices industry, whilst deepening our
cooperative relationship with internationally recognized customers in
medical and health care and automobiles industries, which has expanded
our customer base, thus lays a solid foundation for the long-term and
sustainable development of TK Group.

FRBEE(H)

HMEMKRR

AABRERESS(ESETDMARARESR
TEBZEBR) AR AR TART]) &EH
BRAAR(HBIEIE@EISIAEBDEE
2014F12A31HEFE(RBEFAN] 2 F
E#HE -

EREHALN —UAKRETBRARTR
HER RISERFRZERTNBEER
HESES ANARBZESBENER
LR 2T BEEREMKRTRENK - BR
BIE - FBAEE B ZRNMIRERSN I
AMFEMATR - RIEELERNREA
TEBIF BEEZINSHBERAN
BREBLSEEEMMARBBRERE
T TERNEEHEMLEZRBER
REEERTE BREEEET RE - "
ERBEREAERTE-

MUMFRRTIEBEREBEMGRN —F -
BMAZIEEPA NS EFES  JEE
TENERES RNERNEBRERBE
WMAEERGEE BEREFERAFR
RE - BEENEAERTERBE RN
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Chairman’s Statement [continued)]
ERHESE (#)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, TK Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$1,338.9 million, representing an increase
of 11.8% compared to that of last year (2013: HK$1,197.9 million). The
Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$365.4 million (2013:
HK$331.7 million) with a gross profit margin at approximately 27.3% (2013:
27.7%). The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 26.9% to approximately HK$153.9 million (2013: HK$121.3
million) compared to that of last year. The net profit margin was
approximately 11.5% (2013: 10.1%), 1.4 percentage points higher than
the previous year. Basic eamings per share was approximately HK$0.19
(2013: HK$0.22).

During the Year under Review, TK Group’s production capacity was
enhanced and its market share was enlarged comprehensively due to
strategy acquisition and capacity expansion plans. Benefitting from the
rapid growth in demand for smart and consumer electronics products,
the user-friendly mobile phones and wearable devices that cater for the
customers’ pursuit for health life, and health care products have become
increasingly popular, contributing to the growing demand of precision
mold and plastic injection business of TK Group. Thereby, we have
leased a new plant in Suzhou to expand the production capacity of
plastic components business, which has commenced production in the
fourth quarter of 2014. Moreover, we have newly established a
performance mold business unit for high-end consumer electronics
products as planned in Shenzhen, which has commenced operation in
the first quarter of 2015. This will further enhanced the production
capacity of performance molds, therefore, satisfy the demand for orders
in mobile phone and wearable devices products.

HE2014F12A3IHIEFE RIEEE
WA #1,338 9B BB L BEF EF11.8%
(20134 : 1,197.9F B & L) - F F 4365.4
BEBT(2013F :3B1.7AEBT) £
K 4 B27.8% (20134 : 27.7%) ° 7N A &)
EABMEFERG R EFEMN69%E L
153.98 &8 L (2013F : 1213 HE B L)
45 R 4911.5% (20134 : 10.1%) » 8 £ F
EIMAEED 2 - EREAAEFHH0.19
BT (20134F : 0.22/87T) ©

EEFR REEKRENMERBRTE
HRARIGEEZEERTSBEEEX R
BERNERELHEHEETERT KNS ESE
R FEAMERBRREFPEREELR
MFHEAFERE KRBEAZEE®R
BaRT ERISENEERAE LTS
EBHNBRFEBRA - RAEMAEEHIMNE
ETHRE BRIBEHEFER Y
R2014F EMFRERE - 1o HAER
AEERIFRHE SR EEETFEMN
SRRAEEEN WER015FF—F
ERE EBE—FRASBERLER S
MEFHREAFERBEROERRK -



Chairman’s Statement [continued)]

In the medical and health care business, TK Group seized the
opportunities arising from the demand for high-precision plastic injection
molds from the disposable medical devices market and the nature of its
bulky and steady orders, and actively strengthened the development of
the related business during the year and completed the acquisition of
domestic assets from a multinational tooling company in Shenzhen in
October 2014. It does not only enhance TK Group’s design and
production capacity of medical and packaging mold, but also expands
our customer network of medical and health care business.

On the other hand, in order to capture the huge demands for ultra-large
molds from the automobiles industry, we have actively expanded
production capacity by setting up a new and specialized business unit in
2014 that commenced operation in the fourth quarter in 2014. In
September 2014, we completed the acquisition of Selig & Bottcher
GmbH & Co. KG (“S&B Company”) which has a strong history in
operating distribution of tools and special machines for injection molding
as well as mold fabrication. By virtue of their selling network and
marketing capabilities in the European region, we will be able to provide
more closely-tailored after-sales service for the local existing customers,
which also contributes to the introduction of more customers in Germany
and Europe, and then further consolidate the market share of TK Group
in the automobiles molds market.

FREBEE(])

BERMAA#EEXBITH RIEEFE
T-REBESHYHREREIZER &
HIEEXRARENFE  RFEREE M
SRARBE X B R - W HN2014F 10 A TR
BRI-HEERBRARBAEE - &K
THEREFISENERERHEEEARNK
HFERN TRAKEZRMEELEAZ
BEBZEFBE -

S—FHHEAETEHBAAELD
EXATRBEGBEE RMR2014FFHHRL
EFEEEN WER2014FEWNEFR
7 - 201449 A + HI5A T Selig & Bottcher
GmbH & Co. KG ([ S&B Company) 9 {f & -
S&B Company A & $E T IR A MR A {E
MTANBRERESFTABRERRNNESE -
BB EERE M REOEERERY
HEN AEMRBERFREH#EIUMNE
BIR% MEBMERMIIAEZEZEREM
EEF E—SERRIEESRERANT
BDEE -
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Chairman’s Statement [continued)]
ERHESE (#)

During the year, TK Group continued to devote more resources to
technology research and development and product planning to optimise
respective workflow and production processes. By the automatic
production line of our own research and development, we have improved
production efficiency and reduced the production costs, which
consolidates the leading position in industry of TK Group as well as its
competitive strength. Moreover, our mold plant in Shenzhen had been
recognised as a National New and High Technology Enterprise in 2014. It
does not only represent an acknowledgement of TK Group’s levels in
research and development and technology of mold products, but also
entitles the Group with tax benefits thereby, contributing to a positive
effect on the results of the Company. In the previous year, TK Group, by
seizing favorable opportunities, has made active effort on perfecting
production processes and product structure and expanding the scale of
production in order to enhance production capacity and operational
efficiency. TK Group built solid fundamental in 2014.

Looking into 2015, the Group has a plan of optimization based on its
existing operation. The Mold Fabrication Business and Plastic
Components Business will be classified by downstream industry, in order
to cater to automotive tooling and high-growth medical and health care
industries, enabling the Group to be more targeted at the business
management and development and customer service levels. We also
strive to enhance the production line automation, including automated
precision mold fabrication, injection molding production lines and add
more mechanical arm, to ensure the implementation of fully automated
injection molding. On the other hand , the Group will strive to integrate
and take advantage of the capacity of the new acquisitions, customers
and human resources, to develop new sales positions, to promote
synergy effect, particularly our future key development industry such as
high-end medical customers. At the same time of enhancing operations,
we are also committed to maintaining strict internal control and cost
management so as to support the sustainable development of TK Group
with sound financial condition.

RITIEBERFREE NG MFERE
MRBMEA BESAB IR LEER
RB-RMEBETHENASHLEERR
EEERERALBEEEMRAS MR T
RISEMTEXEREMURBRFED - Ik
Sh BRPEFRYMEABAR2014FERR
BRRLSFEMCE ETEHRIE
BEAERMOAEREMKETASE
AEENTRARZERBESR BRFH
¥EERIETE - BE—F RIEED
BWREREMEHE BEXELEREBRER
EE CBALEERE RAEEREEN
o EBAENI4FETERENER -

RE2016%F RFTEIERALEER L
MAEBE BARITEMELIZEZBHRR
BRTIEBOTESIR WL REBRANER
EEAAZEERERTE BAKEER
BEEERLAEPRGER LHE Aty
H-BAMBHRALEREDL  BRERE
EEAREEYL ARTBEERIEM
EEHBRFE BRERZEASHLEL
HE-m—FHE ASEHEBINEEENA
MBEHEENER FTFPFERANER R
MMEEN BRHRYE - LEEZRFMAR
REHBERZIEGBRANGHERETP -
FERTEERENRE - RATRB E
BRREM A RKAE IR - AR R
MAXERTIEENFERR -



Chairman’s Statement [continued)]

We have confidence in the long-term development of our Company. TK
Group will continue its presence in China and further with our global
vision, make full play of its strong capacity and extensive experiences in
high-precision molds and plastic injection to deliver a continuing and
steady business growth with customers diversified. Meanwhile, with the
customer base built over years and well recognized products and
research and development ability, we will continue to further develop the
businesses that deliver additional growth, further expand market share of
TK Group and improve its business coverage under the leadership of our
experienced management, striving to become the most trust worthy
working partner of one-stop plastic injection solutions among globally
renowned brands.

The steady development of TK Group also depends on our excellent
corporate culture. In the future, |, together with management of TK
Group, will continue to lead the Group to go ahead by expanding our
businesses through flexible and prudent strategies and optimising
allocation of internal resources on a continue basis, in order to achieve a
sustainable growth in businesses, generating attractive returns for
shareholders.

| have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
share, which together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per share
paid, represents a proposed dividend of HK7.0 cents per share in
aggregate in 2014. The dividend rate was 36.8% (subject to approval at
the general meeting), higher than committed 30%. This was mainly
attributable to the strong financial position in the Company. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had recorded net cash (deduction of total
borrowings by cash and cash equivalents) of HK$135.2 million.
Meanwhile, the Company is also optimistic about the results in 2015.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for the
support of all business partners, customers and shareholders, and the
contributions of the management and all staff of TK Group for the past
year. We believe that, with their dedication and efforts, TK Group will be
sure to achieve further success.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2015

FRBEE(H)
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REZRANERRFZEN ELERE
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TEXBEEZ BAKKBERANSLGE R
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RISENBFER TABRNERND
EXf- AR - BREFRTEEEEEKESE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THRBWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the gross domestic product in the United
States grew strongly with economic recovery and steadily declining
unemployment rate. The economies in Japan, Russia and Eurozone were
still gloomy, and there was increased downward pressure on Chinese
economy in the short run, though the growth was in the expected target
range. Despite the complicated international economic situation, the
Group’s total turnover recorded with a steady and healthy growth,
amounting to HK$1,338.9 million in 2014 (2013: HK$1,197.9 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 11.8% (2013: 9.3%). The sales of
the mobile phones and wearable devices industry, the household
electrical appliances industry and the medical and health care industry
recorded strong growth.

E% O

EEFA EELEER REXEBST
b BAAEEBESRAS: AL HKE
kBT E & EAREEDRE R ELE
EEENBEHEZERHE BEECHLET
TEDEREMN  HEFNREBRLCERS
T O AEEERREEBDASBETRE
R R - 2014F 2 ¥ 5 /1,338908 848 T
(2013F : 1,197 9B & B L) RAF L F
11.8% (20134F : 9.3%)  F i & 7] FF & & &
T RETEREERBAAZERITED
HEMRRY -

Year ended 31 December Change
HZ12A31ALEE )
Industry Amount  Growth
T 2014 2013 8 EER
Share of Share of

HK$ total HK$ total HK$
million revenue % million  revenue % million %

BHE PE1h BE E1h BE
B HRBA% BT BRA% BT %
Mobile phones and wearable devices F # K 7] 7F & :% 1 298.5 22.3 196.7 16.4 101.8 51.8
Household electrical appliances e 234.6 17.5 132.0 1.0 102.6 7.7
Medical and health care BELEAZER 119.9 9.0 56.8 4.8 631 111.1

Commercial telecommunications BEBNK

equipment 202.7 15.1 159.1 13.3 43.6 27.4
Automobiles RE 228.6 17.1 280.1 23.4 -515  -184
Video game devices BERE B 56.5 4.2 34.1 2.8 22.4 65.7
Pachinko o T 10.3 0.8 97.9 8.2 -87.6  -89.5
Digital devices BrRE 79.2 5.9 86.4 7.2 -7.2 -8.3
Others Hitp 108.6 8.1 154.8 12.9 -46.2  -29.8
1,338.9 100.0 1,197.9 100.0 141.0 1.8




Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$365.4 milion (2013:
HK$331.7 million) with a gross profit margin of 27.3% (2013: 27.7%). The
Group has completed expansion of its production capacity in the second
half of the year, such as establishing a new business unit specialising in
ultra-large standard molds, a highly automatic precision mold fabrication
business unit, Longgang branch office and a new plant in Eastern China.
Due to longer cycle of mold fabrication, it is difficult for the expanded
mold production capacity to realise economic benefits (as reflected in the
gross profit margin) in the short-run. However, such expansion of
production capacity was based on the long-term development of the
Group and demand for new orders, thus we believe such expansion laid
a solid foundation for future sales growth of the Group. Moreover, the
Group’s gross profit margin was partly affected by depreciation of the
Euro during the year under review.

The Group recorded a profit for the year attributable to owners of
HK$153.9 million (2013: HK$121.3 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 26.9%. The net profit margin was 11.5% (2013: 10.1%).
Basic earnings per share was approximately HK$0.19 (2013: HK$0.22).

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Mold fabrication business

For mold fabrication business, the Group’s new business unit specialising
in ultra-large standard molds commenced operation in the fourth quarter
of the year for the manufacturing of instrument panels, bumpers and door
panels for the automotive industry. We are confident that such expansion
of production capacity can effectively meet the strong demand for large
mold orders of the Group, laying a healthy foundation for the Group’s
future sales growth of large molds.

The new precision mold business unit for high-end consumer electronics
also commenced operation in the fourth quarter of 2014. The business
unit is a highly automatic flexible production line to cater for the growing
demand of the Group’s plastic injection business for high-end consumer
electronics and tap into this fast-growing market trend.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

B E AR R S (6R)

The Group completed two strategic acquisitions during the year. The
Group is committed to expand the global footprint of the Group’s
business. After considering the various acquisition alternatives, the Group
identified the target market in Germany, and completed the acquisition of
S&B Company on 1 September 2014. S&B Company has a strong
history in operating distribution of tools and special machines for injection
molding as well as mold fabrication, being strong fit to the existing
business of the Group. Following completion of the acquisition, it is
expected that the sales and marketing capabilities of the Group in the
European region will be substantially enhanced through the sharing of
synergies with S&B Company. The Group will be able to provide local on-
the-ground after-sales services to current and potential German and
European customers.

On 16 September 2014, the Group entered into a formal asset purchase
agreement with Nypro Tool (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd in respect of an asset
acquisition (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). All of the applicable
conditions specified in the Asset Purchase Agreement had been satisfied
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Asset Purchase
Agreement and completion of the acquisition took place on 31 October
2014. The Group’s Longgang branch office (medical and packaging
business unit) commenced operation in the fourth quarter of 2014, and
the acquisition enhanced the Group’s technology and market
competitiveness in the packaging and medical fields.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

The turnover of the mold fabrication business division amounted to
HK$540.3 million, representing an increase of 13.5% when compared to
approximately HK$476.0 million last year, accounting for 40.4% of the
Group’s total turnover. The growth was mainly attributable to increased
orders from new customers and existing customers, particularly driven by
the rising demand of customers from the mobile phones and wearable
devices industry, the medical and health care industry and the household
electrical appliances industry.

Plastic components manufacturing business

For plastic components manufacturing business, the Group has
successfully entered into cooperation with renowned brands in the
wearable devices industry. The newly rented production plant in Suzhou
commenced production in the year, and its production capacity of plastic
components is expected to increase effectively, thereby promoting the
business development of the Group in Eastern China.

The turnover of the plastic components manufacturing business
amounted to approximately HK$798.7 million (2013: HK$721.8 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.7%. With the increased
demand for high-precision plastic components and the transformation of
the Group’s highly automatic production strategy, the Group has made
structural adjustments to its customers of plastic components by
reducing sales to customers from the pachinko industry and boosting the
development of the related products including mobile phones and
wearable devices, medical and health care, and commercial
telecommunications equipment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

As a vertically integrated one-stop plastics solutions service provider, the
Group’s mold fabrication business and plastic components manufacturing
business can generate strong synergies and are complementary. Thus
the Group can provide customised, cost effective and streamlined design
and fabrication services to its customers, facilitate cross-selling of its
businesses and enhance its technical expertise. The management
believes that the reputation of the Group in mold fabrication can attract
customers, which would help to secure more orders for manufacturing
plastic components.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$1,338.9 million,
representing an increase of HK$141.0 million or 11.8%, from revenue of
HK$1,197.9 million in 2013.

The mold fabrication segment revenue in 2014 was HK$540.3 million,
representing an increase of HK$64.3 million or 13.5%, from revenue of
HK$476.0 million in 2013. This increase was primarily due to the increase
in sales to customers in the household electrical appliances industry,
mobile phones and wearable devices industry and medical and health
care industry, especially in the European and American markets where
many orders from new customers were secured and orders from the
existing customers had increased.

The plastic components manufacturing segment revenue in 2014 was
HK$798.7 million, representing an increase of HK$76.9 million or 10.7%,
from revenue of HK$721.8 million in 2013. With the increased demand
for high-precision plastic components and the transformation of the
highly automatic production strategy, the Group has made structural
adjustments to its customers of plastic components. During the year, the
mobile phones and wearable devices industry, commercial
telecommunications equipment, medical and health care industry
recorded strong sales growth.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$365.4
million, representing an increase of HK$33.7 million or 10.2%, from gross
profit of HK$331.7 million in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

Segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication slightly dropped from
39.1% in 2013 to 34.3% in the current year, primarily as the Group
completed a number of expansion of production capacity for mold
fabrication in the second half of the year, such as establishing a new
business unit specialising in ultra-large standard molds, a highly
automatic precision mold fabrication business unit and Longgang branch
office. Due to longer cycle of mold fabrication, it is difficult for the
expansion of mold production capacity to realise economic benefits in
the short run, which affected mold fabrication short-term gross profit
margin to a certain extent. However, the expansion of production
capacity was based on the long-term development of the Group and
demand for new orders, thus we believe such expansion laid a solid
foundation for future sales growth of the Group. Moreover, as the
European market is one of the key markets for the mold fabrication
segment, segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication was also
partly affected by depreciation of Euro during the year.

Segment gross profit margin for plastic components manufacturing
increased from 20.2% for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 22.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase in gross profit
margin was primarily due to structural adjustment to the products which
was in line with market demand, resulting in strong sales growth and
effective use of production capacity in the second half of the year.

Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$18.6
million, representing a decrease of HK$11.1 million or 37.4%, from other
income of HK$29.8 million in 2013. The decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in the sales of scrap of approximately HK$10.0 million from the
last year.

Other gains/(losses) — net

Net other gains for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$4.1
million, representing an increase of HK$4.8 million, from net other losses
of HK$0.7 million in 2013, primarily due to the foreign exchange gain
arising from exchange rate revaluation of deposits received from
customers for the mold fabrication segment.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$62.7
million, representing an increase of HK$3.2 million or 5.4%, from selling
expenses of HK$59.5 million in 2013, primarily due to the increase in
transportation expenses and sales commission which aligned with the
growth in sales.

EEERE S (])

B A SE D 88 F F K 820134 #939.1% fig
ETRERFENILI%  TERARAE
BETH+FKZHRRARFERLER
BREALUEERANEXEN S8
EMRBRTEARFESESREEO QA -
R REARFERANBERNEH RAE
REREARBEEFABRELERE —
ERELFETEAREEHNEN X
BHREEERETDENKEERERR RN
RTERF RMBAE ELERERR/AE
EARREERRBEERSIMER I K
M HRARESBNERN S 2 —
FABRT Tt —ERELFETRAR
ED BRI ER =

EBBEMRE S TR RN =2013F12
A31H IEFEMHN202% FFt & & £2014%F
12831 B IEFEM25%c EFXRERHER
AFXrZRFAamBEERNERMNGERBESR
BT EFHERRRDH R BER -

H g A

HE2014F12AMBEFENEMKAS
18.6 A & /& T B20134F /) E 1th Ug A 29.8
BEBTRL1IAEBEB T 337.4% ° K
PHETERARERBEEREFRD TH
10088 BT

HitWz (B8 — F8

HZE2014F 12831 EFEMNE bk F
BALIIAEB L B2013F M H i 5518 %
HOTEABBLEMISEE S L TE2H
REARESHEREFEEEREHRE
A IE UL 5 BT B -

HERMX

HE0M4F12A3MB I FEHENRNSI A
B27TEH BB B2013FHEM 59508
BILERI2EEE L 54% T ERH
ERE EHEANEEMSAY EDHIE
Eo

JE—
o

(o7 ¥ B (¥ %) Bl ¢

7
il
il
#




mJo
—

—‘
P
@
3
(=
]
I
=
o
=]
@
<L
c
E
—
@
<3
>
=]
=]
c
8
)
@
k]
o
3
N
5]
=
H

Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK$134.1 million, representing an increase of HK$8.0 million or 6.3%,
from administrative expenses of HK$126.1 million in 2013. The increase
was primarily due to (1) the increase in labour costs; and (2) the provision
of allowance for impairment of inventories and account receivables.

Finance expenses

Finance expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$5.1
million, representing a decrease of HK$1.4 million or 21.5%, from finance
expenses of HK$6.5 million in 2013. The decrease was due to the
decrease in bank borrowings during the year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$36.5
million, the decrease of effective tax rate of 2014 was primarily due to the
reversal of a HK$3.9 million over-provision in last year by domestic
companies according to the result of final tax settlement.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was HK$153.9 million, representing an
increase of HK$32.6 million or 26.9% from HK$121.3 million in 2013.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
RATIOS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$241.1 million (31 December 2013: HK$217.8 million)
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$266.5 million (31
December 2013: HK$332.6 million). The current ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2014 was approximately 1.4 (31 December 2013: 1.4).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was approximately
HK$526.7 million (31 December 2013: HK$370.3 million). The gearing
ratio (which was calculated by dividing total loan amount by total equity
amount of the Group) as at 31 December 2014 was approximately
24.9% (31 December 2013: 45.7%).

The Group has maintained adequate financial resources to fulfil its future
commitments and make future investment for expansion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:

EEERE S (])
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As at 31 December

MR12H31H
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Within 1 year 1TFEURN 84,729 116,434
Between 1 and 2 years 1229 K 24,628 11,485
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F R 22,004 41,305
131,361 169,224

An analysis of the Group’s key liquidity ratios as at 31 December 2014 is

R2014F12A31H  AEEMNETE R E

as follows: SHESFTWT :
As at 31 December

M12H831H

2014 2013
Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GEBEERB (M) 83 74
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) B RENZEREXE(fz2) 49 47
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B o EMNRBEBRERE(ME3) 62 58
Current ratio (Note 4) mENE K (At 4) 143.1% 141.3%
Notes: Htat -
1. Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory 1. GEREABXETIZFRFHE6E UG BT

divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

3. Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables

divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group expanded its production capacity of mold
fabrication business to meet its long-term development and demand for
new orders. Due to longer cycle of mold fabrication, work in progress
(“WIP”) as at 31 December 2014 increased significantly. Besides, in order
to meet the increased demand in January 2015, plastic components
manufacturing business stocked up with finished goods (“FG”) at the end
of 2014. All these factors resulted in an increase in inventory turnover
days to 83 days.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS/
TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade receivable turnover days was 49 days,
trade payable turnover days was 62 days, which were comparable to
those for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The slightly increase of trade receivable turnover days was primarily due
to the significant increase of sale to certain big customers in the fourth
quarter of 2014, whose credit term is around 45 days to 90 days. Such
sales were still within normal credit periods and were therefore unpaid at
the end of 2014.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio was 143.1%, which
was comparable to that as at 31 December 2013.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2014 are set out in Note
25(a) to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
and is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from various currency
exposures, mainly with respect to HK dollar, US dollar, Euro and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have
always been of concern to the Group. Foreign currency hedging of the
Group has been managed by our chief financial officer, and overseen by
the Group’s chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the foreign exchange situation, the Group’s chief financial
officer would collect and analyse information regarding various hedging
instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief
financial officer would then collect quotations from various banks as to
the financial instrument and present such quotations to the Group’s chief
executive officer, who would then evaluate and make a decision as to
whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had not entered into
any hedging agreement.

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in HK
dollar. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily denominated
in RMB, US dollar and HK dollar. The Group will closely monitor the
exchange rate movements and regularly review its banking facilities so as
to mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2014 are set out in
Note 31(a) to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S LISTING

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2013. Net proceeds from the initial
public offering totalled approximately HK$268.0 million (including the net
proceeds from the exercise of the over-allotment option which took place
on 15 January 2014). The design and planning of production facilities as
well as the installation and testing for major equipment such as
computerized numerical control milling machines, electrical discharge
machining machines and plastic injection molding machines take some
time. It takes about 2 to 3 months from placing an order to installation
and testing and to trial production, or even longer like 6 to 9 months. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company had acquired or
placed orders to acquire equipment for a total of HK$169.4 million, and
the capitalised amount recorded was approximately HK$111.6 million.
Use of proceeds and their progress are set out as follows:

i. The standard mold fabrication segment has established a new
business unit specialising in ultra-large standard molds. The
production has commenced in the fourth quarter and payment of
HK$36.3 million was made for equipment during the year.

ii. The precision mold fabrication segment established a new precision
mold fabrication unit during the year for upgrading mold fabrication
capabilities. The production has commenced in the fourth quarter
and payment of HK$23.7 million was made for equipment during
the year. Other existing precision fabrication units and standard
fabrication units also acquired some new equipment for production
expansion during the year, with HK$13.4 million paid for equipment
during the year.

. In order to improve production capability, Shenzhen plastic
components manufacturing segment set up an advanced spray
painting production line, relocated to new workshops and
purchased equipment during the year, such as injection molding
machines, robots, temperature control box and water temperature
machine, with HK$46.3 million paid for equipment during the year.

iv.  In order to meet the increasing need from the clients in Eastern
China, during the year, the Group’s Eastern China business leased
a new plant with an area of approximately over 6,000 square
meters which is located in the same industrial park, for expanding
the Group’s production lines and capacity. This newly leased plant
in Suzhou has commenced production in the year, with HK$4.6
million paid for capital expenditure during the year.

The table below sets out the use of net proceeds from the initial public
offering and the unutilised amounts as at 31 December 2014. All
unutilised proceeds are placed with licensed banks in China or Hong
Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]
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Use of proceeds EBESHE
Utilised Unutilised
% of total amounts amounts
amount Net proceeds in 2014 in 2014
HRE & 2014 F 20145
WED RIEFE CEAME REVARE
(HK$ milion) ~ (HK$ milion) — (HK$ million)
(BEER) (AEBT) (BEBT)
Establishing a new business unit BB ARRER A
specialising in ultra-large MERBN
standard molds 19% 51.9* 36.3 15.6
Upgrading mold fabrication FHREARIERY
capabilities 14% 3717 371 —
Expanding Shenzhen plastic BRI LA
components manufacturing B AL
capacity 22% 59.4* 46.3 13.1
Expanding Suzhou plastic BB EBAMG
components manufacturing B AL
capacity 17% 44.5¢ 4.6 39.9
Strategic acquisitions of other KRR iR A
mold fabricators e 11% 29.5* 16.4 13.1
Research and development (‘R&D")  #ZEI& A 8% 21.5% 8.8 12.7
General working capital —REEES 9% 24.1* — 241
100% 268.0* 149.5 118.5

* On 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the sole global
coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) of the global offering, partially
exercised the over-allotment option, pursuant to which the Company issued
26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of HK$1.25
per share. The allocation of the net proceeds of HK$32.4 million was adjusted on a
pro rata basis as set out in the section headed “Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 11 December 2013 (the “Prospectus”). As a result, the net
aggregate proceeds was increased from HK$235.6 million to HK$268.0 million.

The use of proceeds shown above is in line with the intended use as set

out in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue any suitable
project to capture the potential growth of the Group’s business in the
coming years in the manner set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The source of funding would be
primarily from the net proceeds from the listing, the Company’s own
funds and bank borrowings.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 3,265 full-time employees (2013:
2,947) and had 681 dispatched workers dispatched to us from third
party staffing companies (2013: 290).

The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent directors and
employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The Group
has put in place a share option scheme for its directors and employees in
a bid to provide a competitive package for the Group’s long term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work
ability and personal effectiveness.

We have implemented training programmes for the employees to meet
different job requirements. We believe that these initiatives have
contributed to increased employee productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, we make contributions to mandatory
social security funds for the benefit of our PRC employees that provide
for pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
housing funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 100% equity interest in TK Mold Germany GmbH
(formerly known as Selig & Boéttcher GmbH & Co. KG and its limited
partnership) on 1 September 2014 with consideration of EUR250,000
(equivalent to HK$2,554,000) from Mr. Wolfgang Bottcher, an
independent third party. TK Mold Germany GmbH was mainly engaged
in operating distribution of tools and special machines for injection
molding as well as mold fabrication and providing local on-the-ground
after-sales services to German and European customers.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to enhance its
presence in German markets. Goodwill amounting to HK$965,000 was
recognised upon completion of the acquisition.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group completed a number of investments for mold
fabrication. The new business unit specialising in ultra-large standard
molds commenced operation in the fourth quarter for the manufacturing
of instrument panels, bumpers and door panels for the automotive
industry. We are confident that such expansion of production capacity
could effectively meet the strong demand for increased large mold orders
of the Group, laying a healthy foundation for the Group’s future sales
growth of large molds.

The new precision mold business unit for high-end consumer electronics
also commenced operation in the fourth quarter of 2014. The business
unit is a highly automatic flexible production line to cater for the growing
demand of the Group’s plastic injection business for high-end consumer
electronics and tap into this fast-growing market trend.

In addition, the mold fabrication segment completed two strategic
acquisitions during the year under review. For details of the two strategic
acquisitions, please refer to the sub-section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Business Segment Analysis — Mold
Fabrication Business”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

EHERE S (&)

Such expansions lay a foundation for the future stable growth of the
Group’s mold fabrication business. Looking ahead, the Group is
expected to realise steady growth, and in particular, the mobile phones
and wearable devices industry, the automotive industry and the medical
industry are likely to record even-faster growth.

For plastic components manufacturing, with the increased demand for
high-precision plastic components and the transformation of the Group’s
highly automatic production strategy, the Group has made structural
adjustments to its customers of plastic components by reducing sales to
customers from the pachinko industry and boosting the development of
mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and health care, and
commercial telecommunications equipment. The Group has successfully
entered into cooperation with renowned brands in the wearable devices
industry. The newly rented production plant in Suzhou commenced
production in the year, and its production capacity of plastic components
is expected to increase effectively, thereby promoting the business
development of the Group in Eastern China.

The Group will continue to provide efficient one-stop services to its
customers to drive the steady growth of its businesses.

The Group is actively seeking investment opportunities which suit the
scale of the Group and can generate synergies for strategic acquisition to
facilitate the Group’s business expansion and expand overseas market.

DEVELOPMENTS AS TO DEFECTS TO
LAND TITLE WITH RESPECT TO THE
SHENZHEN TANGJIA PLANTS

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalised terms used in this sub-section shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Prospectus. In the course of application by ;T
BRI ABR A7 TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd (“TK Technology
(Shenzhen)”) to convert the existing green-type property ownership
certificate, TK Technology (Shenzhen) was informed by the Land Bureau
that the Bureau of Urban Planning and Land Commission of the
Shenzhen Municipality (RYITHRBIELZE) was currently examining
policy proposals regarding the conversion of land use from high-
technology project to commercial use by payment of land premium for
submission for the approval of the municipal government. Therefore, TK
Technology (Shenzhen) should submit the written application after the
promulgation of the relevant policy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

According to the relevant laws and regulations of Shenzhen, leasing of
the Shenzhen Tangjia Land must be approved by the Land Bureau and a
land premium shall be paid, as TK Technology (Shenzhen) currently holds
a green-type property ownership certificate. The Company’s PRC legal
advisers confirmed that the relevant laws and regulations of Shenzhen do
not specify any penalty for leasing of the Shenzhen Tangjia Land for high-
technology project purposes without obtaining prior approval and paying
the land premium, such as confiscation of the land or the eviction of the
tenant.

The Company has the contingency arrangements, as disclosed in the
Prospectus, in place and will adopt such measures when it is necessary.
Such contingency arrangements include relocating to the Backup Plants
by exercising the Company’s right to request the Backup Plants Landlord
to enter into the formal lease agreement with the Company within 15
days from the Company’s notice to the Backup Plants Landlord for one
or more of the Backup Plants pursuant to the Pre-lease Agreements.
Towards the expiry of the Pre-lease Agreements, in the event that TK
Technology (Shenzhen) has yet to convert the green-type property
ownership certificate into red-type property ownership certificate, the
Company shall seek to either renew the Pre-lease-Agreements or engage
another party for a similar arrangement. For details of the contingency
arrangements, please refer to the section headed “Business — Properties
— Plans to Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties”
of the Prospectus. The Company has renewed the Pre-lease Agreements
with effective period of 2.5 years until 31 December 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 55, is the chairman of the Group. Mr. Li is one of
the founders of the Group and was appointed as an executive director on
28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning of the Group. He has
accumulated more than 31 years of professional experience in plastic
mold fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience in
business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong
Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold fabrication
business into PRC in 1992 and moved the operations in Shenzhen, the
PRC. Mr. Li was elected the “Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year” from
Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several social titles,
including serving as a committee member of Shenzhen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in 2010, the President of Guang Ming
General Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), the President
of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, the Chairman of Kowloon City
District Road Safety Campaign Committee, vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, vice president of Shenzhen
Overseas Chinese International Association, the executive director of
Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce, the honourary vice chairman
of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming New District. On 16 June
2014, Mr. Li was appointed as the honorary president of The Hong Kong
Plastics Manufacturers Association. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from
Yuanzhou Gongshe Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China,
and obtained a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the
controlling shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company
Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and
the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Directors and Senior Management [continued]

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, aged 53, is the executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also the member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has approximately
26 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. He was appointed as executive director of the Group on 28
March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation and implementation
of the business plan of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
acted as a buyer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May
1985 to August 1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May
1987. From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the
Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible for
operation management for the molding business. He served as the
managing director of the Group since 2000, mainly responsible for
business development and the daily operations of the Group’s business.
Mr. Yung graduated for the Department of Industrial Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree of Science in
Engineering in November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of
Buddhist Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of
Hong Kong with a Master’s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), and the
controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union Development Ltd. (a
substantial Shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 53, is the executive director of the Group. He
is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has approximately 31
years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui Leung (a controlling
shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company)
established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been
holding the position of manager, mainly responsible for procurement for
the Group. From August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the
EMBA training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained
a degree of master of business administration from the University of
Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and director
of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controling shareholder of the
Company), the controlling shareholder and director of Normal Times
International Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the
younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Directors and Senior Management [continued]

ESREREERR (&)

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
and chief financial officer of the Group on 27 November 2013. Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as a corporate financial controller
and was mainly responsible for the finance, taxation, audit and investment
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at
Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (current known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”)
and served as financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacture
company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong Kong and the U.S..
He has accumulated 27 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1987 with a major in accounting, and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, BBs Jp, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering
from the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010 and
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from City University of Macau
in September 2012. He was appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2010. He was
awarded an honourary doctorate of business administration by the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007 and an honourary degree,
Doctor of the University, by the University of Newcastle, Australia in July
2006 respectively. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
Medal by the Hong Kong SAR Government effective on 1 July 2011. He
was also appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong SAR
Government effective on 1 July 2005 and won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997. In November 2014, he was further awarded
the Industrialist of the Year.

Dr. Chung had been an independent non-executive director of Kin Yat
Holdings Limited (stock code: 638), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 30 January 1997 to 24 August 2014. He is also a co-
founder and currently a non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Since September 2012, Dr. Chung has been an independent
non-executive director of KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code:
3816), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also been an
independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1 April
2014,
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Directors and Senior Management [continued]

Dr. Chung has extensive involvement in various social bodies and
institutions. He is currently the honourary chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and the vice-chairman of Hong Kong Design
Centre and the Hong Kong Standards and Testing Centre. He is also the
Court Chairman of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the vice-
chairman of Vocational Training Council. Dr. Chung is an active member
in different charitable organisation. He is the founder of Bright Future
Charitable Foundation and is a member of the Board of the Hong Kong
Paediatric Foundation. He is the chairman of the executive committee of
both the Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited and the Boys’ and
Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong respectively.

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of Sydney, Australia
in May 1988 and a master of commerce specialised in finance from the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1991. Mr. Ho was
awarded as Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered
Financial Analysts in September 1998 and is a CFA charterholder. Mr. Ho
has previously served as Head of China Research, Senior Research
Analyst and Vice President in Institutional Equities in international financial
institutions, including Credit Lyonnais, JP Morgan and HSBC. Mr. Ho
joined HSBC Group since November 2004. In June 2008, he was
appointed as Head of Research, China, serving and acting as the
representative in the Beijing Representative office of HSBC. As at January
2013, Mr. Ho worked as a Hong Kong China Equity sales director for
HSBC. During the period from November 2013 to 31 March 2014, Mr.
Ho had been an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Since 10 October 2014, Mr.
Ho has been an independent non-executive director of BBI Life Sciences
Corporation (stock code: 1035), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Since 9 February 2015, Mr. Ho has been appointed
as an executive director of Fifth Element Resources Limited (stock code:
FTH), a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management [continued]

EEREREER (&)

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of both the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong and China and has over 31 years of experience in auditing
and providing support for initial public offerings and acquisition
transactions. From July 1978 to June 2011, Mr. Tsang worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Tsang received a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from Chinese University of
Hong Kong in June 1978. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 1991, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
May 2004 and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants since March 1989.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock
code: 133), PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078),
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (stock code: 460) and China
Animation Characters Company Limited (stock code: 1566; listed on the
Stock Exchange in March 2015). Mr. Tsang is currently also an
independent director of Agria Corporation (a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange; stock code: GRO), and a director of PGG
Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand Stock
Exchange; stock code: PGW).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 48, joined the Group in July 2014 as corporate
financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and plants finance
operation. Prior to join the Group, he worked for a company listed in the U.S.
and was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance affair. He
has approximately 24 years of experience in auditing and finance. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong. He has also been a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management [continued]

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 35, is the general manager of the standard
mold business unit of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 2002,
and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Group in
January 2009, responsible for the development of the mold fabrication
business, project management and the management of affairs in respect
of technology, quality and sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr.
Lu was appointed as the general manager of the standard mold business
unit of the Group, he is responsible for the overall management of the
standard mold business unit. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high molecular
material machining specialised in mold design and manufacturing. In May
2013, Mr Lo obtained a degree of master of Business Administration in
Executive Management from the Royal Roads University.

Mr. Bergstrom, Carl Thomas, aged 61, is the general manager of the
performance mold business unit of Group and is responsible for
performance mold business unit. Mr. Bergstrom has more than 35 years
of experience in injection molding and mold fabrication. He was the
founder and owner of Toolcad AB founded in 1985, which was sold to
Angpanneforeningen AB in 1995. Prior to joining the Group in September
2007, he was the managing director of Perlos Precision Molds (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd. Mr. Bergstrom completed a diploma in mechanical engineering
from Sven Eriksonskolan, Boras in Sweden in June 1976.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 38, is the chief marketing director of
the plastic components manufacturing division of the Group. Mr. Lok
joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed as the chief
marketing director of the plastic components manufacturing division of
the Group. He was mainly responsible for sales and marketing affairs of
the plastics components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lok had approximately 8 years of experience in plastics
industry. Mr. Lok previously served as the application development
manager of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr.Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’'s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

Mr. Lui Shit Chun, aged 50, joined the Group and was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group in March 2011, responsible for the overall management of the
plastic components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lui had worked in the plastics industry for approximately 10 years
and has worked as the operations manager of Nypro Hong Kong Ltd.
Mr. Lui graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1994 with a higher certificate in manufacturing engineering
(plastics). He obtained a master’s degree in procurement management
from the University of Strathclyde (distant learning) in the U.K. in October
2007.

EFREREER (&)

EhERE 3B AAEEZEEAS
FEEMNAKIE - E S EB2002%5 A AR
£E 2009F1AEZTAAER B BK
B AEREREERAL ZEREERR
i  MEREREEEHMNEIE T1E 2013
FIOAEZTAAEBEIZEEAETEEN
I AREERERIEERMHER
BB o ELAEN2000F7 AEEREME T
X8R DEeSs TMENTIEEEZE
BIE R R2013F5 A ERAERMEX
ERREBEREITHE EMBAE T 24 o

Bergstrom, Carl Thomas % 4 > 6155 A N &
EedEAEEEENRLE BEaMEER
= ¥ ¥ N7 o Bergstromit A EE B KB A&
EFEEBBISF 25 - B AM1985F X
37 I A 19954F & F Angpanneforeningen AB &Y
Toolcad AB® &l 16 A R #E A A ° f£2007 59 A
A A & B AT 0 1 & {E Perlos Precision Molds
(Shenzhen) Co. Lid. & % #8 4 2 - Bergstrom
% A R19764F 6 A 15 I # 1 4 H7 A9 Sven
Eriksonskolan & # i T12 3% ©

RBREE 385 AAEETBEMR
EEBEH IS BE - B LEB2009F8 A #E
MAREE BEZEAAEB FBAEFR
EEBITSRE - REBZAEFBAM
BEEBHMNEERTHHEREEE - £
AREER - BEBREENRBRBITEEAS
& 4R B o 8% St £ % {T GE Plastics Hong Kong
Limited &) J& F 5 2% 45 312 - B% 5% 4 1998 4F
MAZERBEBRBEKRE  REHK IR

B8

BT E %&£ 5088 R2011F3 A A K
EEVEZAAAEE 2 FBAHFREE
HEasE BEERTEIBAGRE
EBM-EMARNERF  BREREBER
TEXBAERLIOFZIEER BEEY
&2 (F#8) G R A al (Nypro Hong Kong
Ltd.) B & B LI B 5 o = %8 4 1994 FF 11
FREEREFFEIARE BEHNETRS
(BR) &4 &EE I 72007 F10 A BLS EH
University of Strathclyde (iR 12 28 ) R I8 & 12
B4 o

(i }
(=l gy }

(27 & (&) @ % T

7
il
il
#




[l
=D

—‘
P
@
3
(=
]
I
=
o
=]
@
<L
c
E
—
@
<3
>
=]
=]
c
8
)
@
k]
o
3
N
5]
=
H

Directors and Senior Management [continued]

EEREREER (&)

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 38, is the internal audit manager of the Group. Mr.
Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was appointed as the
internal audit manager of the Group, responsible for the internal audit of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xing had approximately 13
years of experience in finance and audit. Mr. Xing has held positions such
as assistant accountant in Wal-Mart China company, senior internal
control consultant in an IBM joint venture in China, finance manager and
internal audit manager in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM
and Hitachi, he was involved in a number of projects including ERP
implementation and SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal
auditor of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC with a
bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in auditing. He also obtained
the Degree of Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The
University of Manchester in November 2013.

Ms. Ma Fa Li, aged 40, is the director of human resources of the Group.
Ms. Ma joined the Group in December 2003, and was appointed as the
director of human resources of the Group in January 2011, responsible
for the human resource, management, administration, information system
management and EHS (environment, health and safety). In March 2004,
Ms. Ma graduated from Northeastern University in the PRC with a
master’'s degree in management science. From December 2010 to
December 2011, she completed /&> ¥ & & A A B (CHO)REHL I (5 — £A)
(Tsinghua enterprise CHO outstanding class (phase 2)) at Tsinghua
University.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 52, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa” for further information.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for
the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business. The Board is committed to
strengthening the Group’s corporate governance practices and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2014. Key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarized below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ dealing
in the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]
ERELIEBE ()

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN
GUIDELINES FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”),
governing securities transactions by employees (including directors or
employees of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company) who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company and/or its securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting 4 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers, none of
the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and implementing objectives,
policies, strategies and business plan of the Group approved and
delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least one-
third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to the
Board and they are invited to serve on the Board committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board meeting, taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in the said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]
ERELIEBE ()

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term, subject to
renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years. The appointment
may be terminated by either party by not less than 1 month’s written
notice. Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a term of 1 year.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing the
independent non-executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. In addition, any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office only until the first general meeting after appointment, and
any new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”),
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung will retire at the AGM pursuant to the Articles provisions stated in
the foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board and the
Nomination Committee recommended their re-appointment. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of the above retiring directors as required by the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board is also responsible for implementing policies in relation to
financial matters, which include risk management and internal controls
and compliance, if applicable. In addition, the Board reviews the financial
performance of the Group, approves investment proposals, nomination
of directors to the Board and the appointment of key management
personnel. These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the shareholders of the Company, the duties to act honestly and in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times and to avoid
conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations. Any director may request for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for
performing corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed and
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration function of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to the full
Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest of a substantial
shareholder or a director, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, share issuance and distribution of
dividend, and approval of financial results and corporate strategies. The
Board will review those issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and he/
she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing directors are continually
updated on changes and developments to the Group’s business and in
the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing
process. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for record.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the directors complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous

EREIRS (W)

BEAFHAY EF—BHETEEXEAR
SFRIZ SFRIG X FEAGSK 2ENTHE

professional training as follows: HEE
Attendance
i E

Name of Director

= a b c d

Executive directors: HITESF -

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHR &L v vV Vv Vv

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEATE v Vv Vv

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE Vv Vv

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REELE Vv vV Vv

Independent non-executive directors: W7 IEH 7T E E -

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFEL vV Vv

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung A RR S e A& v vV Vv

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong EN LA vV Vv v

a:  Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company’s a: ZZ2M THARA G ABRERMAHED
compliance adviser relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities BIRE ARBEHEEREABRA
under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and e - £ AR A R K b A RO
other applicable laws and regulations. HTHBERER-

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company b: BBEE S T AWM EEMEAE H ¥
Secretary on the Group’s business, operations and corporate BRERCEEREEMNTEHEHR
governance matters. LEHER -

c:  Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their c: ZESEHFE T B HEE QA HE L2 6
duties and responsibilities, organised by professional firms/ HESZCBERETHBOHTE
institutions. FmiE o

d:  Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications  d: 2 % ;& £l & ¥R ~ H3 T K1 E kR

on subjects relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.
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e 2
m DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS EEHFE T
- The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board & EEZREH E2014F 1284310 IFFE LT
g committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company held HMAAREFTehEg=eL 8@ UK
g during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out below: R AXe 7 HELEEHmT
é Attendance/Number of Meetings
% HE EBRH
5 Annual
g Audit Remuneration Nomination General
z Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
g [
D EEHA BEEXg BENZEY VHZEEE REZEET BFKE
T
-
% Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A 4/4  N/A @B N/A A3 11 1/1
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung SEHLEE
Michael 4/4  N/ATEH 3/3  N/ATER 11
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu ZTRBRE 4/4  N/A @B N/AF@EA  NATER 1/1
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa oK 5 E LA 4/4  N/A @R N/AF@EA  NATER 1/1
Independent non-executive BIIFNITESE -
directors:
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFIE LT 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (B¢
(Note 1) (fF3E1) 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong EH L L
(Note 2) (FF5E2) 4/4 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1
Note 1: Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung was appointed as a member of the Nomination — Hf5F1 : fa] B 56 £ FE2014E3 7 H # £ i B 1EH
Committee on 7 March 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, there were 1 FEEHHE - EMAFm1E  REE2014
Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2014. FI2ABTAIF FERXEBTT —KIEEZE
= tE o

Note 2: Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was appointed as a member of the Remuneration — Hf 72 : 8 2 5t 75 4 201443 A7 A # (F @ 5 37 Bl

Committee on 7 March 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, there were 3 FEEHHE EMBFmE - REFE2014
Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014. FEI2ABAIFFEREBT T = RFHWNEE
P

==

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the th4h HRIEFEFRNEE S T /FEB T IFH
independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive 1TZEZRIT T — R EREATESTHELE
directors during the year under review. ATHEE -
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Board Committees

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request. All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Mr. Li Pui
Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once in any financial year and to make recommendation
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become board
members and makes recommendation to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, board diversity, the integrity, experience, skills and professional
knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and effort that the
candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
External recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]
ERELIEBE ()

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

—  Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors standing
for re-election at the 2014 AGM; and

—  Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s independent
non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Dr. Chung
Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration proposals of all
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;

—  Access the performance of executive directors;

—  Review the remuneration package of the directors; and

—  Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior

management for the year 2014 and the proposed salary increment
for the year 2015.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including those
members of senior management who are also executive directors, by
band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
rEM AR Bl (B T)

500,000-1,000,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 9 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, namely, Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung, all are independent non-executive directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

—  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditors before
submission to the Board.

—  To review the relationship with external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and procedures.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee has held
3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set
out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and
performed the following major works:

—  Review and discussion of the annual audited financial statements,
results announcement and report for the year ended 31 December
2013, the related accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and the relevant audit findings, the report from the
management on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes, and recommendation of the
re-appointment of the external auditors;

—  Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and the
compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided by the
Company's controlling shareholders;

—  Review of and monitoring the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report;

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements, results
announcement and report for the six months ended 30 June 2014,
and the related accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

—  Review of the internal control performance and effectiveness.
The external auditor attended 2 of the above meetings to discuss with
the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the audit and

financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment of external auditor.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who
fulfils the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year ended
31 December 2014, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 77 to 78.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditors, in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December
2014 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by
the external auditors

Audit services — audit fee for the year

ended 31 December 2014 FEMNZEER

SIEERBMRAENREES

BMERGE — B ZE2014F12A318 1k

EREIRS (W)
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RARABZARIMEARTELRE BEFE
THRAFHECERR T - REEZRE
HBEENAFTFRIEERaREREE] —
o B 22014F12831BILFE k& A&
BT LM EEEEEY -

BB R 2B

ARARWIINEZHMBBMERARAESE
2014F 12 A1B L FEMP B RENER
ETEHNETTETSENB L ZHEIRE A -

HE0MU4FE12A31B EEE - B~ ER
ZNUNECIR 3 4 R S =Rl = 4l )
ZHRBERITOT ¢

Fees paid/payable
B ENER
HK$’000

FET

approximately 3,427
#73,427

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the results
and cash flows of the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

%%Eﬁﬂ?fﬁ%i&%éﬁﬁ}%lﬁ@ﬁ

EENBHMERLASEAFBRFEEEmMA
S ) NN DN NS E Y /N N A NS
ERZFEFENEERRESAENM KR
X O AREBSTHEEN R EMBRANEER
THEMT - RREEEE2014F12 8318 1
FEMNUERREG EECEREENS
ABRERLMAERER (FEEERESE
HHET R G ARBERGEREAR S ILER
EHAREBMBRADEEER -

EEWY T HNEAHEERMALERARQA N
HEKLLERNGFEEARBANEARMAR
WEREARTHRARE -

o~
o

(o7 ¥ B (¥ %) Bl ¢

7
Hr
Hr
#




cJ
—

—‘
P
@
3
(=
]
I
=
o
=]
@
<L
c
E
—
@
<3
>
=]
=]
c
8
)
@
k]
o
3
N
5]
=
H

Corporate Governance Report [continued]
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders investments and Company assets and
reviewing the effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an
annual basis.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group,
reports to the Board on any material issues and makes recommendations.

For the purpose of the Company's listing, the Company hired Protiviti
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. to review the effectiveness of the Group’s material
internal control system. They had communicated with the Company on
their findings and recommendations. On-going assessments and
amendments have been conducted by our internal audit department.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board considered that the
Group’s internal control system is adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provision on internal control of the
CG code.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”, may follow
the same procedures by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong. The shareholder should state his/her proposals in the written
requisition and submit the written requisition as early as practicable to
enable the Company Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, pursuant
to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/her of his/
her intention to propose a person for the election and a notice duly
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment
of the notices should commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting.

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in enquires to the Board to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop No.
19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle
Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories , Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Groups’ business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]
ERELIEBE ()

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent board committee are available to answer
questions at shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and development, financial information
and other information are available to public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles of the Company is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. Principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 79.

The dividends paid in 2014 and 2013 were HK$31,411,000 (HK$0.038
per share) and HK$226,559,000 respectively. The Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 10 June 2015. The proposed final dividend is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The final dividend,
if approved, is expected to be paid on 30 June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be held
on 3 June 2015, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 1 June 2015 to 3 June 2015, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 May 2015.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 10 June
2015 to 12 June 2015, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 9 June 2015.
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Directors’ Report [continued)
EEEREE (M)

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years is set out on page 164. The summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders
of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 21 and 23 to the financial statements
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 143 to
147 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”) amounted to approximately
HK$470,886,000 (2013: HK$397,636,000), of which HK$41,330,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2014 were around HK$370,000 (2013: HK$1,000,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report [continued)
EEEREE (M)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a services agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20 December
2013, which may be terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of one year commencing
from 20 December 2014, unless terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than one month’s notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service agreement which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and Note 33 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURE

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire by means of acquisition of shares, or debt securities, including
debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report [continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company and associated
corporation which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code, were as follows:

() Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of Director

EEns

Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li")

FHREE(FHREE]D

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
(“Mr. Yung”)

SEMEE(HEE]D

Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee”)

FREEE(FRERE]

Capacity/Nature of Interest

56 HEEME

Interest in controlled corporations

(Note 1)
RS EEER (A1)

Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 2)
REGEEER (A t2)

Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 3)
REGEE R (A E3)

EFEREE(H)

EERNKRG  HEARORE
FHNER

R2014F 128318 A AR EEZER A A A
REBEAENRD R XBEROTES
BRIBEZBHLBEGO(EFHRBAEBKMLD
EXVEPET7 K8 B AME AN A A) KB AT
i SKERBEE S KB E G0 F 35215
MR ZIEMENELMAmER A
RIEZET RS AR E) &R &
mr

i) ARE2TIRBHER

Approximate
percentage* of
shareholding in

Number of
the Company’s

shares interested the Company
BREEN VNS OF 3
ARERGEHE KREBDE"
507,920,000 61.45%
53,760,000 6.50%
51,840,000 6.27%

Notes:

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix”) (for
421,620,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead
Smart”) (for 86,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of
Eastern Mix is owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, respectively; and Lead Smart is wholly owned and controlled by
Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr.
Li, he is deemed to be interested in these shares held by these two
corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer
Development”), a corporation wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.
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Name of Director

3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times”), a corporation wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

+ The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2014.

(ii) Long position in the underlying shares of the
Company (physically settled unlisted equity
derivatives) — share options

Capacity/Nature of Interest

EENE B EatE
Mr. Li Beneficial owner

MR EAE BE=#AA

Mr. Yung Beneficial owner

Ak BE=#AA

Mr. Lee Beneficial owner

TRIBRAE BE=#AA

(i)

3. ERERGAENEREGRL A ([ER])
WHE ZRABFRELLELEHBLR

HEH o

+

B IEAT S R 8 & BRE B B

A EIR20144F 12 A31 A B #7789 8K 17

#H -
READRBRANE A (B
MEEFLTRAEATET
B)— MR

Percentage*

Number of of underlying

the Company’s shares over
underlying the Company’s
shares issued share
interested capital
HERGIEEQT

BREZENEAAT ERITRAMN
HERGHE B
3,000,000 0.36%
1,860,000 0.23%
1,800,000 0.22%

Note: The underlying shares stated above refer to the share options offered by

the Company to the directors on 29 December 2014. These share
options were subsequently were accepted by the directors on 5 January
2015. Details of these share options as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules are set out in the below section headed “Share Option
Scheme” and Note 22 to the financial statements.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2014.
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(i) Long position in the shares

corporation of the Company

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of

Directors’ Report [continued)

EFEREE(H)

of associated (i) E£ XARMEBEERAG N
Fﬂ

Approximate
percentage*

of shareholding
in the associated

Number of
the associated
corporation’s

Name of Director  corporation Interest shares interested corporation
RERZEZERN
BREZNIEERE BB
EENS MHEEEETE B MY EERGEE Elal Al
Mr. Li Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 22,500 45%
MR A R EmBEAEA
Mr. Yung Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 14,000 28%
Sk 4 R EmBEAEA
Mr. Lee Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 13,500 27%
TRBRAE R EmBEAEA
+ The percentage represents the number of shares interested divided by the + B EE K72 A B X IHE
number of issued shares of the associated corporation as at 31 December JEBR2014F 1231 H BB 7T R 7
2014. 2F -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or a short position in shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short
position which he/she was deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Br £ CPTH EE & SN - 1R20144F 12 A 31
H BEARAEZEETSETETRAER
RARBKEERMBEZE(EER
BENHERFIEXVER) B - HEE
BHEHFTEBREESF RS K
BIEXVERR 7 R8N EHBEME RN A K&
BRXAOESRAS(BEREES
LB E GO ZEEXER BN E W
ERERRAR)  HBEREZES R
EIEP E35216REER Z G AT e M &
RMAmERR AR RAREIZ®E
SR AN AR R B) R B X FT A R 25 Bk A

A
B e

(=l |
o

(o7 ¥ B (¥ %) Bl ¢

O
|
s
=
#




e
—

_|
=~
@
5]
=
o
T
o
=
=3
«Q
&
[
3
—
[0]
o
>
=3
3
c
o
Byl
[0}
T
o
=
N
(=]
=
H

Directors’ Report [continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the following corporations had interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company which were required
to be recorded in the register of interest required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares of the Company

FERRRKR D & AHEE KRG
HY #E 28

R2014F12 A31H » L TNABR AR A5%
HAEMBBITRATEE AT AREE
H R EEPIEICBCIKEBEERARATE
MRS MR

RAERTARGOER

Approximate
percentage* of
existing share
capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of shares Company
REQXRRBERE

RREH B EME R4 & E WBABE D

Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 421,520,000 50.99%

SR(MEET) EmlBE A

Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 86,400,000 10.45%

2R (K aE1) BEHEBA

Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 53,760,000 6.50%

B (Ht7F2) EmlBEA

Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 51,840,000 6.27%

B (B 7E3) BEHEBA

Value Partners Group Limited (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporation 58,482,000 7.07%

BREERR AR (KT4) REHEE R

Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund Beneficial owner 43,046,000 5.20%
EmEAA

Notes: Bt st -

1. The above interest of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the 1. U LEERGZEZEZR FX[EERRG -

interest of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ interest in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interest of Cheer Union was also disclosed as the interest of Mr. Yung
in the above section headed “Directors’ interest in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures”.

3. The above interest of Normal Times was also disclosed as the interest of Mr. Lee
in the above section headed “Directors’ interest in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures”.
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4, These 58,482,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Limited were deemed to be interested in
these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

+ The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person, other
than the directors of the Company whose interests and short position are
set out in section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (including employees, executives or
officers, directors including non-executive directors and independent
non- executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to
the long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract
and retain high caliber employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company’s listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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Directors’ Report [continued)
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and 9.68%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting. A grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Option). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determined by the directors, save that such a period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject to
the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share Option
Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the highest
of () the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.

RITERBEREASCSRD RBREZ
FTEBREEATETARITZRMHEE £
fR 780,000,000 i B £~ 1 74 $% 4% 8 A 4 &t
FRAHARQAE D HEITRNA10% K%K F R
HEIAR DA 2 #ITRD #99.68% ° RAEM 12
EAMEREEREASABLEERSZ
HEREWBRE(BESTERERTE
BB AE) AT T A BT RO B (D BB ERIAK
RADBETRND Z1%RE - HEAE—F
REBBIRBENEMEREIALER
ERRERREg L#E-REBRESAE @A
NRAEF FTBITBRABRTIERRER  HE
MEENBREATROBREBLBILIFE
HOTEZE(TERIABREARANER
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Details of the movements of the share options under the Share Option

Directors’ Report [continued)
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REE2014F12 831 H IEFE > B EST

Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows: TN EES RO
Number of options
BREHE
Exercised /
Outstanding cancelled/ Outstanding Exercise
as at Granted lapsed as at price
Date of grant 1January  during the during the 31 December pershare  Exercise
(Note 1) 2014 year year 2014 (HK$) period
H2014F H2014F
BEBH 1810 ERTHES 128318 BRITEE
GER RTE FARE FHEAX KT (Bm) TR
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Li Pui Leung 29 December 2014 — 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 1.61 Note 2
TR EE 201412 5 29H ffiF2
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung 29 December 2014 — 1,860,000 — 1,860,000 1.61 Note 2
Michael
SEMATE 2014412 F29 R ffiF2
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu 29 December 2014 — 1,800,000 — 1,800,000 1.61 Note 2
FRBRE 2014412 F29H ffiF2
Total:
B — 6,660,000 - 6,660,000
Notes: Bat -
1. The closing price of the Company s shares immediately before the date of grant of 1. KR ARG R E BRI H B 5T a9 4¢ i

the share options was HK$1.62.

2. The exercise period of the share options granted is from 29 December 2014 to 28 2.
December 2017.

3. The number and/or exercise price of the options may be subject to adjustments 3.
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the Company " s share

capital.

The fair value of 6,660,000 share options granted on 29 December 2014
was HK$3,334,000. Further details are set out in Note 22 to the financial

statements.

1B#1.6287T »

HE -

BRI ERERTTIERB2014F 125290 &
2017F 12284

AR FETHE  ARETHARAEFELER
wEE - AERIEE AR HITEEL ST

20144912 A 29 H % i 2 6,660,000 17 8 I
R f 1B 53,334,000 7T © HE — £ IFE
R HmERM 22 -
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company (on
behalf of itself and the Group) dated 29 November 2013 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that their
respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in any
business in competition with the existing business activity of the Group.
Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors of their
compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that
they have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2014. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed on the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed has
been complied with and has been effectively enforced.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the
directors confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed annual
caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

THFERE

THRGA TEMEREBIZHFDE
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction T HEH I ZEIERPIFTER HHR2014FE 2
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2014: FELITREEERLHE

Actual Transaction
No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
my BAEBXS B A FELR ERRZH
RMB’000  HK$'000 RMB’000  HK$'000
ARBFT FET AR®TFT FET

1 Processing Agreement Operation Unit of 2,087 2,634 — —
Jin Baoli Mold and
Ironware of Gongming,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen* (“Jin Baoli”)

T i AT E XA E T
BERASKLER
3]

Lease agreement

HE W=
2 Hong Kong Tenancy TK Technology Holdings — 120 — 120
Agreement Limited (“TK Technology
Holdings”)
AEHERE RIMBEEEARAR
(TRIREEER]D
3 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(l) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd. 562 709 562 709
Lease Agreement (“TK Plastics (Shenzhen)”)

FINERBEBN)VEERZ FRIZEBORIDERAT]
(IR CRID D

4 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(ll) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 252 318 252 318
Lease Agreement
AN EEBmEBINEERZE HRITZER ORI

5 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(lll) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 152 192 152 192
Lease Agreement

RINERBEBINEE HZE FRTLZECRID

6 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(IV) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 236 298 236 298
Lease Agreement

RN ERMEBIVVEEHZE HRITZEERID

7 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(V) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 7 9 7 9
Lease Agreement
Y EREBEBVEEHE HETERB ORI
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EFgHREE(E)
Actual Transaction
No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
wE BBXB AL FELR ERXZH
RMB’000  HK$’000 RMB’000  HK$’000
AR T T FHET ARETT FHET
8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant I No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 4,739 5,980 4,739 5,980
Lease Agreement Ltd. (“TK Technology
(Shenzhen)”)
FYNERBENREERE FIBRECRIDBER AR
(TERIRHR CRYD D
9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant | No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 737 930 737 930
Lease Agreement
FIBEREE2REERHZE IR ORI
10 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant I TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,629 3,317 2,629 3,317
Lease Agreement
FEYNE R E I1TEE % OB ORI
11 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant |l TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,353 1,708 1,353 1,708
Lease Agreement
FINIERB S T & 1 % OB ORI
12 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant IV TK Technology (Shenzhen) 987 1,245 303 383
Lease Agreement
FINBERBEVHEERZ  RIREFRCORYD
13 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant V TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,128 1,424 1,013 1,279
Lease Agreement
AINEREFEVIEE E FROLRE ORI
14 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VI TK Technology (Shenzhen) 67 85 67 85
Lease Agreement
ANBERBEVIHERZE  RIRFCRYD
15 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VII TK Technology (Shenzhen) 74 93 11 13
Lease Agreement
Y BERBEVIHE RS  RIIRECRID
16 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VI TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,796 2,266 1,796 2,266
Lease Agreement
FINBRBEVIEAERZE TR CRYD
17 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant IX TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,571 1,983 510 644
Lease Agreement
ANBERBEXHBEHZE IR ORYD
Subtotal lease agreements 20,677 18,251

ME N EE




(1)

(2)

Processing Agreement

On 8 August 2013, TK Mold (S2) Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Jin Baoli
entered into a processing services sub-contracting framework
agreement (the “Processing Agreement”), pursuant to which Jin
Baoli agreed to provide processing services for TK Mold (Shenzhen)
in accordance with the terms on specifications, price, quantity,
delivery and payment to be separately agreed by the parties upon
TK Mold (Shenzhen) placing orders with Jin Baoli. The Processing
Agreement is for a period of two and a half years from 1 July 2013
to 31 December 2015.

Jin Baoli is owned by (Mr. Li Ji Wan*), who is the nephew of Mr. Li.
According to the Listing Rules, Jin Baoli is an associate of Mr. Li,
and is thus a connected person of the Company.

The cap amount payable by us in respect of the Processing
Agreement for the year ended 2014 amounted to RMB2,087,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,634,212). The cap amount was
determined based on (j) previous transactions between the parties; (i)
the then prevailing market price for the processing services at the
time of execution of the Processing Agreement; and (i) the
estimated demand for the processing services by TK Mold
(Shenzhen).

Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 21 May 2013 and as supplemented by
a supplemental tenancy agreement dated 21 November 2013 (the
“Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and the Company as tenant in
respect of the premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor,
Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong
Premises”) with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a
term of two years and seven months commencing on 1 June 2013
and expiring on 31 December 2015 at a monthly rent of
HK$10,000. The property is used as the principal place of business
for the Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the Company may terminate the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

Directors’ Report [continued)

(1)

(2)
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(3)

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and
27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology
Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is
thus a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual rent for the Hong Kong
Premises for 2014 amounted to HK$120,000, payable by our
Company in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The
annual rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer of the
Company has also confirmed that the terms of the Hong Kong
Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and the rental payment
under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement reflects the prevailing
market rate.

RINEEEAMELERAG A
MREE - FEERTERBILEEDF
M % 5 B45.0% * 28.0% }.27.0% ° iR
BEETHRA BRIREEEATHR
EE -FRERTEREENHBEA
T WMAEARTNBEAL - RES
BHEWS 2014FEEEMENER
£120,0008 7 BARAIREEAE
AEALZ M - BN TRIBEEED
FRDEEAHERRIT NI R TFE
BMEETE ARARNBIYWELER
NEEREEHERZNERBAT
AR LESHERFETITHAEER
BLTIRITM(E -

Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements B RINEEHmMEBHER=R
The following lease agreements were entered into between TK HERIBBOFRI) EABEE)EEK T
Plastics Shenzhen as landlord and BT 58T 2B (&Y B R AR (TK BELEZ ORI BRAB(TRITHEE
Precision Plastics (S2) Limited) (“TK Precision Plastics”) and 455 & TR EBEREECRY) AR A F
A(RYNER AT (YD Mold (82) Limited) (“YD Mold”) as tenants (TMERER]D (ERAMBEAN) D BIFT L
respectively: THEE W :
Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
kS EHESD:] =R HEWF £H A
(RMB)
(AE#®)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B() ~ TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and Mezzanine Level, Zone B on Level 1June 2014 to 49,215
Lease Agreement as landlord and TK 21 November 2014 2 and Zone B on Level 3, Block 3, 31 December 2015
Precision Plastics as No.2 Dexing Road, Yulu
tenant Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New Distirct, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
RN EEZREBI() FEIBBORI) 2014F6R1BKR  HRERINTRAFNERHEE 2014F6A1HE
HEHZ (fEhR%x)H 2014F11A218 NEEREEHEBEEERK2R 201512 A318
RTRRENEE E3RF2EBR R EIEBRE
(FEREFHAN) (A1)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(ll)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and Zone C on Level 1, Block 3, No. 2 1 June 2014 to 20,966
Lease Agreement as landlord and TK 21 November 2014 Dexing Road,Yulu Community, 31 December 2015
Precision Plastics as Gongming Sub-district Office,
tenant Guangming New Distirct,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
A E = BEB() FRIZBORI)  2014F6A18 Kk HERITHAFELAEE 201456 A1HE
HEHE (FR¥ET)E 014511 A21E NERFETEBEEEK2SR 2015612318

RIIRRITE
(EREEA)

FIRF1ECE



Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement
thh = iE HESD:] ik AzR

Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(lll) - TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and
21 November 2014

as landlord and YD
Mold as tenant

Lease Agreement

R E2BEEB(I

HEHE (EBEx)HE
HREA(EA
EHEA)

Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(IV)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014
Lease Agreement as landlord and
TK Precision Plastics
as tenant

FINERBEBV) FRIZRRID 201456 A1A
HEH# SEEI
RIIRRITE
(EREEA)

Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(V)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014
Lease Agreement as landlord and
TK Precision Plastics
as tenant

FUEEZBEBVY) MEITIBRBORI)  2014%6A1H
HERH (fEh%x)®
RIS
(e BEAA)

METERBORY) 20146 818K
201411 8218
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Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
HENE £ A#
(RMB)

(AE®)

Zone C on Level 1, Block 2, No. 2
Dexing Road, Yulu Community,
Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New Distirct,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

REIRYIT AR AREE
BEREEHREBEER
F2RE1ECE

1 June 2014 to 12,672
31 December 2015

20146 H1HE
2015512 A31H

Corridor on Level 3 of Block 4,
LED Workshop on Basement and
corridor between Block 2 and
Block 3, Units 102, 202 and
301 of Dormitory Block 1,

No. 2 Dexing Road,

Yulu Community,

Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New Distirct,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

FEIRYIT KA E R E
HEREEHREEEIR
AERSEER  —REZRPH
EERER B&—&102-
202 }2.C301

1 June 2014 to 33,691
31 December 2015

2014F6A1HZE
2015412 318

Zone B on Level 1, Block 4, No. 2
Dexing Road, Yulu Community,
Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New Distirct,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

FERIIT AR NPAEE
PERIEHBEERKR
4iR1EBR

1June 2014 to 981
31 December 2015

2014F6A1BE
201512 A31H

TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to renew the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord
one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B
Lease Agreements and TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are
entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the
event that the landlord intends to sell the subject properties during
the term of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements, including
any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Precision Plastics
and YD Mold of the intended sale in writing and TK Precision
Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a right of first refusal to
purchase, which is deemed to be waived if TK Precision Plastics

RIBEIBRBREABRRR
Y E R EBHEE &R — @A
BHAETBEZER)NEEMEBEHER
@ ARTIHAI2RHERBAHESR
BHE B - O HEZENR
N ERMEBEE # MR (BEZ W
BFOEMER ALENE XA
NEERASHARIBEEE RAER
BAZBELE ERIBETER
HREAGEERLBER HRIIH
BT RARE AR R EZBAIEZI0
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and YD Mold do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving
such notice. TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are further entitled
to terminate the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by
giving one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr.
Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Plastics
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure TK
Plastics (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the Shenzhen Yulu

Plant B Lease Agreements.

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to 45.0% by
Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the
Listing Rules, TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr.
Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the

Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Plastics (Shenzhen) was determined
at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements (including the
rental payable thereunder) are fair and reasonable and the rental
payable under the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements

reflects the prevailing market rate.

AARYTEERELN AREREZE
EBEE -RIBATZERBERER
BERGETEI EABMATREILR
NEEBMEBHEE R B EETH
Bl - HRIZBORIDNWZERERER
FHRELE HRERFREBLEK
W BEMAKAB N RERRILZE
CRIDIBERINERMFEBEE &
BITHEE-

MRIZBBORIDAFHR L L
SEERFRBEEDHNEAERA
45.0% - 28.0% 2 27.0% > 1R & £ T
A HRIZBORID AFHRE
E HARERFREBEEANBEA
T BARRBMBEEAL -

FEA#T T Z B ORI W ERTDER
NEEMEBHEHEWMZEN S T A FE
FREE - ARAINBILYEEER
NEERRIERmMEHEBE W E A
FR(BREEBETENNES)BAF
a2 ARV EEMEBHEEHZ A
THENEERBRTRITHE-

(4) Shenzhen Tangijia Plants Lease Agreements 4 FINERZWEHEWH=

The following lease agreements were entered into between TK
Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and

TK Precision Plastics as tenants respectively:

Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement
& EHED HE A
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2013 and
Plant I No. 1 Lease (Shenzhen) as 21 November 2013
Agreement landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenant

FIERBEN 5
REthz

BTRE (RIN
(fERET)EET
BEORI) (BB
EBA)

201356 A1H K
201311 4216

FEARYIT AR AREE

RIMECRIDEREZE)BRITE
AR BRI AT E (1 /A
AN) B RIETSL N HE W

Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
HEWE £ AR
(RMB)

(AR#)

Workshops A, B & C, Phase 1 of 1 June 2013 to 31 394,885

TK Technology Park, Tangjia December 2015
Community, Gongming

Sub-District Office, Guangming

New District, Shenzhen City,

the PRC

2013F6A1HE
BERERLRRIRR 20156124318
IT5E(—#)EREA B Ci&



Agreement
thh =

Shenzhen Tangjia

Plant | No. 2 Lease

Agreement

FIERBE12%

HEH#

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant Il Lease
Agreement

FIERBEI
HEH=

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant Ill Lease
Agreement

RIERBE
HEHH

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant IV Lease
Agreement

FIERBEN
HEHz

Parties to the
Agreement
iE HED:]

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenant

BTRHE CRIN

(EREDERT
BACRID (A

B A)

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK

Precision Plastics

as tenant

TR CRIN)

(EREXERT

RENT2
(ERAEEA)

TK Technology

(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK

Precision Plastics

as tenant

RILRHE GRYI)

(EREL)ERT

AT
(e BEFAA)

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenant

RTRHE CRIN

(EREDERT
BACRI) (A

B A)

Date of Agreement

LR

1 June 2013 and

21 November 2013

201356 A1H &

2013411 A21H

1 June 2013 and

21 November 2013

201356 A1H K

201311 A21H

1 June 2013 and

21 November 2013

2013F6 A1A R

2013F11 A21H

1 July 2014

2014%7H1H

Directors’

Leased Property
HEWE

Area No. 2, Workshop D, Phase
1 of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

FERYIT K AR AR E
MERERMEFEIR
ITXE(—H)BEDR25%

Workshop G, Phase 1 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

FERIIT R AR A BEE
PEREFHREIRN
TXE(—H)BEREGE

Area No. 9, Workshop H, Phase 1 of

TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
FERIIT AR ABEE
NERERLREIRE
TR (-H)BEHRINRE

Area No. 1, Workshop E, Phase
1 of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
FEIRYIT AR RAEE
PEREFHREIR
TR (-8 BFRER1R

Report [continued]
EEEREE ()

Term Monthly Rent

£ A#

(RMB)

(AE®)

1 June 2013 to 31 61,431
December 2015

2013F6A1HE
201512 A31H

1 June 2013 to 31
December 2015

219,046

2013F6A1HE
2015512 A31H

1June 2013 to
31 December 2015

112,772

2013F6A1HE
201512 A31H

1 June 2014 to 61,464
31 December 2015

2014F6A1HE
201512 A31H
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Agreement

liES

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant V Lease
Agreement

RIERBEV
HEH#

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant VI Lease
Agreement

FIERBEV
HEHz

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant VIl Lease
Agreement

FIEZBEVI
HEH#

Shenzhen Tangjia
Plant VIIl Lease
Agreement

RYEZRBEVI
HE Hh#

Parties to the
Agreement
iE HED:]

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenant

BTRHE CRIN

(EREDERT

BEEI) (EA
EEA)

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics
as tenant

TR CRIN

(EREDERT

BRLEE
(EREEA)

TK Technology

(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK

Mold (Shenzhen) as

tenant

FOTRE CRIN

(ERELIERT

BECRI) (EA
EHEA)

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics
as tenant

FOTRE CRIN

(ERELIERT

iy lpad
(fEREMEA)

Directors’ Report [continued)
EEEREE (M)

Date of Agreement
EAE:

1 November 2014,
1 July 2014,
15 April 2014 and
1 February 2014

201411 18 -
2014F7H1H

201448158 &

201452 18

1 June 2014

201456418

1 June 2014

2014F6 A1H

26 May 2014

2014F5F 26 H

Leased Property
HENE

Area No. 1, Workshop F, Phase 1 of
TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

FEURYIT K AR AR E
PEREFHEFEIR
IX(E (B BEFR1%

Mezzanine Level of Workshop H
and Mezzanine Level of
Workshop G, TK Technology
Park, Tangjia Community,
Gongming Sub-District
Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

FEURIIT AR RS
PEREFHREIRK
TXEGRXE HRKE

Area No. 5, Workshop H,TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

FEIRYIT BB RAGE
MERERLREIRER
TXREHRG%E

Zone A on Level 4 and Zone A on
Level 7, Workshop J, Phase 3
of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

REIRYIT R BB RALGE
MERERLREIRE
TR (CHBREIR
FLEABRRETEAR

Term

4

1 February 2014 to

31 December 2015

201452A1HZE
201512 A31H

1June 2014 to

31 December 2015

2014F6A1HE
201512 A31H

1June 2014 to
30 June 2014

2014F6 18 ZE
20146 A30H

1June 2014 to
30 June 2014

2014F6A1EE
20146 A30H

Monthly Rent
A

(RMB)
(AE®)

120,398

9,610

10,551

224,462



Directors’ Report [continued)

EFEREE(H)

Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
& iE HED:] ik AER HENE £ A
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1August2014and ~ Zone A on Level 5, Workshop J, 1 August 2014 to 102,028

Plant IX Lease (Shenzhen) as 1 November 2014
Agreement landlord and TK

Precision Plastics

Phase 3 of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming

31 December 2015

as tenant New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
FIERBE X FOTRE CRYN 2014%8H1H HREDRII TR EARGE 2014F8A1HE
HEHH (EAEE)ERT R220U4F11AIR PEEERAEBRINE 2015612 431 H
A2 TERCCH)BEIR
(fEBEFAA) H5EAR

TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are entitled to renew
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the
landlord one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK
Precision Plastics are entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal.
Moreover, in the event that the landlord intends to sell the subject
properties during the term of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, including any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform
TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics of the intended sale
in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are
entitled to a right of first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be
waived if TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics do not
accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such notice. TK Mold
(Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are further entitled to
terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by giving
one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung
and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Technology
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure TK
Technology (Shenzhen) to fulffil its obligations under the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is an
associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected
person of the Company.

RIBACRIDRRIIRANET A
ROFRYIER B HE 153 E A — @
ABAETBERZRFRNERBERED
& BRIEACRID) RRIIHEEE
PHREBEHMNELE I WEE
BRANERBEEHEHZRR(E
RZhENENEH) AEERE %
TANEEPEASHRTERCRID
RRIREEZBZRELE BRI
BACRID RFRIRERNTEHEERL
BERE WRIEACRIDERIIRE
BT I8N 1% E % B A1 30 B R R 3%
XEBLH RRIEREZELBEER-
RIBACRID REITHRANTE B #
BYEET—EABATURELERYIE
FBEHERZ MBAETHEH-
RIBMKOCRIDERBERFEDR L
E-HEERFRIBELEAZ  Fit
MHERBHERER TR ERCRYDRE
FNEXRBERERZRTHEE

RIRE(RI) BBRZMR L4
SREENMZTRBEESFHEERSS
45.0% * 28.0% K 27.0%H A 7 - 1B &
EWRE BEITIRBECRID AZTHR
E - FREERFTRBEENBEA
T MEARAFHNBEEAL-
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Directors’ Report [continued)
EFEHREE (#E)

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that, having
taken into account of, among other things, the title defects of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder) are fair
and reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate. Our
directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement,
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements and Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements (collectively the “Connected Lease
Agreements”) have been aggregated for the purposes of
determining the category of continuing connected transaction that
the Connected Lease Agreements shall fall into under the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its
business; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing such transactions that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

& FROT R CR I 80 & 38 T & R I
BEBEHERZENE T AFHERR
BE - ARANBUMELEMLE
B(EFRBRE)RYIERREEERIE
% MEERRYERBEEE R
MER(BRERATHENES)BA
FeHE  BRYVERBERE MR
THENHESRBRTRITHE - HM
MEFERS RINEBEXBEHERZ
RAEEEER - REBBEFRLE
BEEMGKETIL -

BE L ™R A E14A81 - 14A82 %
14A8315 HEREmE FINEE
WMEBHEHBZLRFYNERBERE
E(EEEERERE B TR
GNHAHFE UETHERER &
BRELITRAWMBNFERERZE
Bl o

Bt EWRBIE14AB5EM S © AR T
BUHTEEC KRS L BEH
EXHUER ZERFEBERS
THASENREAS R —REKB
Bh () EEEERRIEEZIK
FoRMBEREZERIZ2HEZ
NREABEFTET TFAEARRAK
HE BRI -

B F W8 B FE14A5616 0 RN AFHZ
HAEZRERE(ESZERRBER
3000) [ FE 52 B 7% & ¥ 28 5T 5k 28 B LA S
NIZBTEIRZGBEESTMAS
BHHCEBHA)ETA05R R E B
EWRAIFTAMHEBER L
R IERAEBMZIFEBRERS - 1R
B B E14A561E AT &
EXBEBENAEERERERS @ &
PERBELOEKE  wHAEHER
MeEsm e A QBB MBRATIRR %%
SHRM BK 1 B o



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2014, it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 27.0% of the Group’s total sales and
the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
10.0% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 15.3% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 4.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial interests in the
Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to above.

RECTIFICATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROCEDURES
FOR THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF
OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES AND HAZARDS

At the time of the Company’s Listing, the Company had non-compliance
in relation to procedures for the prevention and control of occupational
diseases and hazards. Up to the date of this annual report, the Company
had rectified the non-compliance in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

Directors’ Report [continued)
EEEREE ()

B SRX 5
RO 75 52 5 ) 555 BB B 76 4R 2% B 0 o

AKANTHER BE2014F12A831B LFE
MBI SERE EMEAFE14ASZEST
WERTE -

TREEFREER

FR-AEELIAEFPEENHE ARG
AEBEEEBREN27.0% MAEEKAK
EFEENHEERN/AKRBEHEAEDN
10.0% * AEBE A B A EEAEIGNRE
BBHORANEERBAEN153%  MAE
BSRAHEARANRBREOSAKER
BHRENIA% -

AREESE P EMBEA LS EM
BRROBZEEMAEE A RALA LB #
TRANBR)BMER EXAEmAEER
AREHAEFTREESES -

Al IE B B I 12 bl B SR o
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Directors’ Report [continued)
EEEREE (M)

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are
advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their
re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015

NRERE
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Independent Auditor's Report

_i

pwc

To the shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BIAZBENES

BEIEE(EZERERATDICERR
(RAESHSEIMEA L BRLE])

AFEEBAHNEIOEE163H RILEH
(ZR)BERARTERA]D REKE A A
(FEBEEEDNAHTBRE 2ER
2014F12A3AMEHERARREEARBR
ABEZBHLFENAHZERER &
HEZEHREAHASTER I%A
AHREBMEUAREMBREER -

B 600 R AR

BERRESARERBEREGMAEMR
o B0 &8 W 15 5 2 B R BB R B R G
MRBERERBEHBBERER  ASaH
BHHEREHEEMAFORBR  REE
HRBRRAFH BRI B A IE
Bl AEEHPBHRERER N FEHRRFHK
BH AR T G B B RS RR PR -

BB EE

AHOREERRBRMANBAHZFE 6
MERRIEFEER  LEREERRBRS
BAMER BRULZIABREREEL M E
B o AP & LA S B R E A E A E A
ALTB ESEEEMRE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report [continued)
5% 3L 1% B 6D 3R B (48)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015

AHERBEEGIMAERMOELES
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
EHZELEE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLER 79
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 <
Bt & FET FAT
s
Revenue WA 5 1,338,920 1,197,852 ?;;
Cost of sales B 7 (973,504) (866,138) =
S
1
Gross profit E Fl 365,416 331,714 I
Other income H U A 6 18,640 29,783 ?
Other gains/(losses) — net Hupdas, (&18)— F58 6 4,075 (709)
Selling expenses SR 7 (62,675) (59,540) g
Administrative expenses TR 7 (134,074) (126,058) 4
Operating profit Fed =gl 191,382 175,194
Interest income B Y A 10 4,192 517
Finance expenses mEMS 10 (5,122) (6,478)
Finance costs — net MERAK —F8 (930) (5,961)
Profit before income tax BR Pt 18 % A 2 7 190,452 169,233
Income tax expense FiBHHAX 11 (36,529) (47,885)
Profit for the year attributable EATREEABEEREF
to owners of the Company 153,923 121,348
Other comprehensive income H i 2 mE W
Item that may be reclassified to BLR[REEF D B E 1875
profit and loss: ZHEE -
Currency translation differences [ 5 =58 (1,806) 3,194
Total comprehensive income FRE2HEWZHAEE
for the year 152,117 124,542
Earnings per share for the year FRAERERN
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) —EARAK#E(BRABIT) 12 0.19 0.22

The notes on pages 86 to 163 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 86Z 163 B KM AZE A MU KR EN
financial statements. B E D o

Dividends B’ e 28 57,862 241,438
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets

EHRLFIBERRR

Group Company
rEH NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12A31H M12A31H
2014 2013 2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 F & T FAT F#E T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in a subsidiary RBARIZIRE 13 - — 234,940 228,663
Property, plant and equipment % % - &= M & & 15 306,495 167,492 - —
Intangible assets M & E 16 9,720 3,791 - —
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS T E E 27 6 4,469 - —
Prepayments for property, M - B KRB
plant and equipment EONEENEN 18,391 33,199 - =
Deposits for non-current FERFBITEE
bank borrowings iz & 25 2,006 1,267 - —
336,618 210,218 234,940 228,663
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 18 239,119 183,923 - —
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A EURIE 19 295,171 228,728 1,005 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& Ut it B A 7 X I8 33(d) — — 216,433 15,179
Cash and cash equivalents BENEBEEZEEDY 20 266,526 332,587 101,195 237,788
800,816 745,238 318,633 252,967
Total assets BEE 1,137,434 955,456 553,573 481,630
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves RATEE AEML
attributable to owners ERR#EE
of the Company
Share capital A% 2 21 82,660 80,000 82,660 80,000
Share premium % 17 3 B 21 237,902 208,143 412,424 382,665
Other reserves HiEE 23 46,100 30,713 3,334 —
Retained earnings R B 5 A
— Proposed final dividend —EZAHEKRE 28 41,330 14,879 41,330 14,879
— Others — Hi 118,733 36,531 13,798 92
Total equity EmEEE 526,725 370,266 553,546 477,636




Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets [continued)
AHRAFIEERRRE(HE)

Group Company
AEE AR B
As at 31 December As at 31 December -
MW12B31H M12B31H =1
2014 2013 2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
k2 FET FAET FET FE T B
)
R!:]
LIABILITIES afE .
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Non-current bank borrowings — 3E 7t B 48 17 f& & 25 46,632 52,791 - — 5
Deferred income tax liabilities 3 {& F7 15 7 & & 27 4,398 4,958 - — |
.m
51,030 57,749 = - ]
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B NHEMENRIE 26 443,993 379,125 27 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE T it B A &) F 1B 33(e) - - - 3,994
Amounts due to related F& 1<) A B X R FXIR
companies 33(c) — 1,192 — —
Income tax liabilities FiEHasE 30,957 30,691 = —
Short-term bank borrowings 42 HR$R 1T & & 25 58,433 48,726 - —
Current portion of non-current  FER BERITEE
bank borrowings 79 BN HA B 25 26,296 67,707 - —
559,679 527,441 27 3,994
Total liabilities waE 610,709 585,190 27 3,994
Total equity and liabilities EnREEAHE 1,137,434 955,456 553,573 481,630
Net current assets REBEEFE 241,137 217,797 318,606 248,973
Total assets less current BEERRBERS
liabilities 577,755 428,015 553,546 477,636

The notes on pages 86 to 163 are an integral part of these consolidated ~F86ZE163EM M T A% E & H U B MK
financial statements. B E D o

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and were signed 7201653 20 K EF @ #t A - WA E K

on its behalf. REE °
Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
MR SEA
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHESIEDXE

Other reserves
i b8
Currency
Share Share Statutory  Capital translation Retained
capital premium reserves  reserve reserve  earnings Total

BRE ROEE ZERE E4XRE ELAFHE RERA Bt
Note  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKE000 HK$000 HK$'000
Kz TET TERT THERT THExT TERT THEXT THERX

Balance at 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1 R
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K] 4 84 = = 36,387 (1,599 78,428 163,153 276,369
Comprehensive income 2HEKEH
Profit for the year ESpiwil - - - - — 121,348 121,348
Currency translation differences & ¥, = 28 = - - - 3,194 - 3,194
Total comprehensive income 2 & U # 44 58 - - - - 3,194 121,348 124,542
Contributions by and RESEERIAZ
distributions to owners EATEEA

of the Company recognised ~ H & & FE15 5k
directly in equity

Share issuance RDET 20,009 230,000 = = = — 250,009
2013 deemed distribution 2013 FR{ED K = = (35,001) (174,522 (58,827) — (268,350)
Share issuance costs B BATRR A - (6,268) = (8,139) = —  (14,400)
Capitalisation of liability BREEXL - - — 228,661 - — 228,661
Capitalisation of share premium & &RV Bk {3 % B 59,991  (59,991) - - - - -
Transfer of share issuance costs & {7 2 17 A 2 & & - (9,737) = 9,737 = = =
Dividends 9} 28 - - - - — (226559) (226,559)

Total contributions by and EREDTERA

distributions to owners HEREE DR
of the Company for the year 4% 80,000 154004  (35001) 55738  (58827) (226,559 (30,645)
Transfer to statutory reserves B FEE 23 - = 6,532 - = (6,532) =
Transfer to reserve EREEAE — (174,522 — 174,522 = = =
Transfer from reserve EREEEE — 228,661 —  (228,661) - — -
Total transactions with BAQNTHEBAN
owners of the Company REBE 80,000 208,143 (28,469) 1,599 (68,827) (233,091)  (30,645)

Balance at 31 December 2013 A 2013E12H 31
iy £ 84 80,000 208,143 7,918 = 22,795 51,410 370,266




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity [continued)

a8 o=
SHESEEE (8)
Other reserves
Httf# e
Currency
Share Share Statutory  Capital translation Retained
capital premium reserves  reserve reserve  earnings Total
BRE ROEE ZERE EXfFEE BELRE REER Et
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000 HK$000 HK$000
#a FAxT FTExT TEx FEx TET FExT TER
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014%F1A1H
B A B8 80,000 208,143 7,918 - 22,795 51,410 370,266
Comprehensive income 2HEKEH
Profit for the year FERRET - - - - — 153,923 153,923
Currency translation differences & ¥, = 28 - - - - (1,806) - (1,809)
Total comprehensive income 2 T i 25 4 48 - - - - (1,806) 153,923 152,117
Contributions by and RESEERZAZ
distributions to owners of FAUNCTE 2 =DN
the Company recognised HERES DR
directly in equity
Share issuance W fn 247 21(c) 2,660 30,590 - - - — 33250
Share issuance costs BROBIKAR 210 - (831) = = = = (831)
Share option scheme: B E
— Value of employee —BITR%
services BE 22 - - - 3,334 - - 3,334
Dividends sy 28 - - - - - (31,411)  (31,411)
Total contributions by and EREDTERA
distributions to owners of HE R EML DK
the Company for the year k] 2,660 29,759 - 3,334 - (31,411) 4342
Transfer to statutory reserves  BE R 5 % BB 23 - - 13,859 - — (13,859 =
Total transactions with BAQNAEEAN
owners of the Company RBEE 2,660 29,759 13,859 3,334 —  (45,270) 4,342
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014512831 B
iy & 84 82,660 237,902 21,777 3,334 20,989 160,063 526,725

The notes on pages 86 to 163 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHARAER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2014 2013
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt & FET FBT
Cash flows from operating activites REKEZEBNHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 29(a) 187,705 221,226
Interest received B U F & 3,187 517
Income tax paid BB E (32,658) (38,573)
Net cash generated from operating KETEBTEANIRS E5E
activities 158,234 183,170
Cash flows from investing activities REREZHNEESRE
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — MW E AR 32 (1,649) —
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEERRKEBEAR
equipment and construction in TEEIRE
progress (183,177) (97,567)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (7,781) (1,976)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BENLRED
plant and equipment FT 18 378 29(b) 3,440 933
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEENEREE
financial assets (292,762) (324,822)
Proceeds from available-for-sale AHEENSREE
financial assets FT15 7078 292,762 331,911
Net cash used in investing activities BB EEFARS FE (189,167) (91,521)
Cash flows from financing activites REBEEFHNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMBRIE 137,007 302,699
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (161,657) (133,544)
Increase in deposits for non-current FERFRITEEIRESIEM
bank borrowings (739) (1,267)
Interest paid 2 F B (4,994) (6,599)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT P15 BB 21(c) 33,250 250,000
Share issuance costs paid B AR5 BT A 21(c) (831) (12,522)
Repayments to related companies ElEzE - NETEE ) (1,192) (84,792)
Repayments from related companies DY=REZ N NG b - 423,624
Payments for acquisition of equity R2013F W ELHF B
interests and business in the i 7S a5 2 26 75 B0 3R
reorganisation in 2013 - (281,194)
Dividends paid BT E 28 (31,411) (226,559)
2013 Deemed Distribution to Ultimate M) % 4 IR R Y 2013 4
Shareholders RAE 7D K - (83,904)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows [continued]
EHBERTEER ()

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

oo
(=l gy |

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 <
Bt & FET FAT
s
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (R FEE :Vi
financing activities IBEF5E (30,567) 145,942 =
S
1
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BehBEFEEYWCRLD),/ 0
cash equivalents AN (61,500) 237,591 ?
.m
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning il
of the year ENREREEEEY 327,765 90,179 #
Currency translation losses on cash
and cash equivalents RekReEEWERER (653) ()
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREERIASEED
of the year 265,612 327,765
Analysis of balances of cash and ReMASEEWEHDIT
cash equivalents:
Cash and cash on hand BekFERE 266,526 332,587
Bank overdrafts RITEX (914) (4,822)
265,612 327,765

The notes on pages 86 to 163 are an integral part of these consolidated 86 = 163 B #IMi i AZ S A M EIRE N
financial statements. B E D o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HMERRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing, sales, subcontracting, fabrication and modification
of molds and plastic components in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). As at 31 December 2014, the ultimate shareholders of
the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael and
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate Shareholders”), each
holding an effective equity interest of 33.40%, 20.78% and 20.04%
in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 20 March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial
year and the comparative period.

—REH

ARAMN2013F3A28HRFAEHE
MK AEREERAA - AR T
=F ft #% = & &9 #b 4k A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 4%
NABREZERAR EREWBE A
AmBERIAEEDEEAEFREAR
HMBA(FREDREEL RFBAMSF
MmElE - HE RI Z2EREHR-
R2014F 12318 - AEBHRKRK
RAEZTHRLEE FSEAXERTR
BuaE(GBI&RRRE]D FE58
KRR B9 Rl #F B 33.40% ~ 20.78% K&
20.04% ) B AR AN HE 25 o

MR2013F12 8208 * KR AW A D £
EBBMAERZERA A (B ZFT])
£

BREEMEN ZSEEHMBHRE
TIABE LB T 20 ZF 6 HY
BHRRERAABEESR2015F3A
20 B & #E#LE T B o

TESTBERBE

REZEAHMBERREEANE
EEFERREIMNT -KEEHAE
v ZEBKERMERFERFIE
R

21 REEE

ARANEHHBERREREE
MBRELEN(EEMBREE
AR - AHFMBHRRERE
BESLRAE(RELEDAET
ROAHEENESREETINE
) fmE -

A BFEEREBBENA G R
BHmERREA D AERD (5E32F)
B 33 F AR E A B



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2014:

Amendment to HKAS 32, “Financial instruments:
Presentation” on offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. This amendment clarifies that
the right of set-off must not be contingent on a
future event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment also
considers settlement mechanisms. The adoption
of this amended standard does not have
significant impact to the Group.

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

Rt %; 88 = B 5E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

s
o

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36, “Impairment of
assets”, on the recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets. This amendment
removed certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of cash generating units ("CGUs") which
had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue of
HKFRS 13. It also enhanced the disclosures of
information about the recoverable amount of
impaired assets if that amount is based on fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendment did
not have a significant effect on the Group financial
statements.
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Amendment to HKAS 39, "Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” on the novation
of derivatives and the continuation of hedge
accounting. This amendment considers legislative
changes to “over-the-counter” derivatives and the
establishment of central counterparties. Under
HKAS 39 novation of derivatives to central
counterparties would result in discontinuance of
hedge accounting. The amendment provides
relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a hedging instrument meets specified
criteria. The adoption of this amended standard
does not have significant impact to the Group.

2 FESTHREBEm@W
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFBERBE@w
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued B
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wREEE @) K

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures CITETHRERREBEESH
(Continued) () g
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) AKEEF R AT K i

Group (Continued) AASETER (48) 2
HK(FRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the accounting A (BRI BRER ;_,f

for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is BZE®)REBEE21%
within the scope of HKAS 37 “Provisions”. The (B8 | 35 00 s 1 8 lol
interpretation addresses what the obligating event BH E BREESE Eir
is that gives rise to the payment a levy and when AE Bl 38 37?’)% fjé 1 | %
a liability should be recognised. The Group is not M B HZ = I—IEP'] "‘E’“ il
currently subjected to significant levies so the ?J% E’i& E?gg ﬂfé ﬁﬁ =

impact on the Group is not material. HllETEE R TR

: ? FHRRANERE

AEE - BRAEE

RS HESNERE

B WU A B ET
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

q] 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFBRBE@w
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 B EE @)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QINEHBEREEZESF
(Continued) (#8)
(b) New and amended standards have been issued (b)  FTET R A AE 5T 28 Rl 4%
but are not effective and have not been early E R 1E K £ XA
adopted: WP -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
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REstHiBBKR®
ZEBEX

Amendment to HKAS19 Defined benefit plans 1 Jduly 2014
BB EAFE195 (BT A) SERAEE 20147 A1R
Annual improvements 2012 1 July 2014

— Amendment to HKFRS 3 Business combinations

— Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating segments

— Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

— Amendment to HKAS 38 Intangible assets

— Amendment to HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
20125 F F B 2014%7A1H

— BB HREERNEIFR(EFTA) EFAHF

— BB MEEBNER (BFTAR) KEHH

— BB ERE165 (BRI A) M- WEREE

— BB G ERE385 (BRI R) BEAE

— BB SR ERFE 245 (BFIA) B HsE 7 R FR
Annual improvements 2013 1 July 2014

— Amendment to HKFRS 3 Business combinations

— Amendment to HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

— Amendment to HKAS 40 Investment property
20135 & [ B 2014%7H1H

— EAUBMELERNEIR(EETA) EBEH

— BT EREERFE13R (BRI A) DA ET=

— BB G HERE 405 (BFTAR) BEME
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
BEMGHREERF 145 EERLERP 201641 A1H
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of 1 January 2016

interests in joint operation
BEEMBHREERFE 115 (EFTA) WEELERERRZEE 2016F1A1H

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable 1 January 2016

and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and
amortisation

ER G EAE 16 REEGH LN HEMBHENAIEXAEN 201655111
S5385% (£ 7T 4) BB

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: bearer plants 1 January 2016
HKAS 41

EREGHEUE1RREAGTEDN BE:AEUED 20161 A1H

F 4158 (BRI A)



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New and amended standards have been issued (b)
but are not effective and have not been early
adopted: (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
BAPBIRELEDE 105 REERE
ARV BHRELENE125 R
BER S EAFE 28] (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate
financial statements
BAEFERE27HR (BT A) BB HREERSFE
Annual improvements 2014
— Amendment to HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued
operations
— Amendment to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures
— Amendment to HKAS 19 Employee benefits
— Amendment to HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting
20144 F [E oiE BEHERNERBEE R
— BBV BmMEEREST(BFTAR) BERIELEER
—ERUBHMEERNETR(EFTA) 2BIE:EE
— BB ERFE195% (BRI A) EE R
— BB G ERFE345 (BRI A) o HR B S R
HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
BRI ENE1R W E
HKAS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customer
BB G EAFE155 EEAHRKA
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
BERVBHREEAFEIR TRT A

The Group did not early adopt any of these new
or revised standards, amendments and
interpretation to existing standards. Management
is currently assessing the financial impact of these
revisions to the Group’s financial position and
performance.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHREBEw@W

21 REEE @)
2MBHBERKRERD
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FET R A AE 5T £ A #E
E B8 15 K £ 5% A
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
REHIRMABRR
ZEEN

1 January 2016

20161 A1H

1 January 2016

20161 H1H
1 January 2016

201641 H1H

1 January 2016
201641 H1H
1 January 2017

2017F1 A1 H
1 January 2018
201841 A1H
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(c)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as
from the Company’s first financial year
commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in
the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements will be affected.
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2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEBEw
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHREBEm@W

o
[l B ]

2.2 B AR @)
221 8 6tRE (8

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 B A7 @
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 &HtER B (&)
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Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 2.6(c)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Merger accounting

In preparing for the Company’s listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in December 2013, the
Group underwent a reorganisation involving entities
under the same ownership of the ultimate shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing carrying amounts from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Merger accounting (Continued)

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date
or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
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the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the BHRRZEREEAEBRB
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds WREHEEZFBE(BER
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial B)EAHPBEHRERZE®R

statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEBRE @
i ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
2.3 Segment reporting oK E
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2.4

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). Renminbi (“RMB”)
is the functional currency of principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
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borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are BYVEBEMNELBEBERIE
recognised in profit or loss within ’finance income or mHPER AW A KK

cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transaction); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised as a separate component of equity in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not provided
on construction in progress until the related asset is
completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
e 204F

Leasehold improvements
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Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter
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Plant and machinery 5-10 years
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Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 3 years
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Motor vehicles 5 years
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 Y% - BERRZE @

2.6

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains/(losses) — net“ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

(@)

Computer software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 10 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method at three years over the
expected life of the customer relationship.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)

(©

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

° there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

° the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

@

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, these are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables comprise deposits for non-
current bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash and
bank balances.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.11 Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ’loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or Group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHREBEm@W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec) 105
. . . - . * ot
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 211 M E E R E @ ¥
. R g
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (@ UEEREARNEE
(&) i
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment R EBEEHBREED %
loss decreases and the decrease can be related fE RG> - Tk TEDR 4 AT K ER =
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment MERRARELELENS E
was recognised (such as an improvement in the HEBANERIRE |
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously ek E) BRAE - BlkAIE o
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the RO EBEAES
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. PHW R KR ERRED -
_m
agr . aE > #5
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale b) PEAITHLEENEE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. For equity
investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
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previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed HEARBZER  BEZ
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment CREECAHERR RRE

losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Inventories 2127 &
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. It excluded borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHREBEm@W
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2.16 Trade payables 216 B+ B 5 B

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

2.21 Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share
premium).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.22 Revenue recoghnition 2.22 N A TR

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Mold modification income
Revenue from mold modification services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.23 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFBRBE@w
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group and approved by the Board of
Directors.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK$,
US dollar (“USD”) and Euro dollar (“EUR”). Exchange
rate fluctuations and market trends have always been
the concern of the Group. Foreign currency hedging of
the Group has been managed by our chief financial
officer, and overseen by the Group’s chief executive
officer. In accordance with our hedging needs and the
then foreign exchange situation, the Group’s chief
financial officer would collect and analyse information
regarding various hedging instruments and determine
stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief financial officer
would then collect quotations from various banks as to
the financial instrument and present such quotations to
the Group’s chief executive officer, who would then
evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter
into the relevant hedging agreement. No hedging
contract has been entered during the year. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continves)y 3 Bf & & B & 1 (1)

113
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EKREZR @ -
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) HME = B2 (&) &
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency NEEEAEXRBE A&
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities AN BEEREE M =
at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows: e aEsERmASY W =
T -
>
2014 2013 a
HK$’000 HK$’'000 [l
FEx FAT 7
.m
Assets BE E
HK$ T 121,168 254,462
usb ETT 214,283 140,341
EUR BT 12,444 6,806
Total #st 347,895 401,609
Liabilities =R
HK$ BT 124,565 180,138
uUsD ETT 16,846 23,532
EUR BX 7T 406 1,408
Total st 141,817 205,078
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the in AR B X B B % FA
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable held B/ 8 E5%  mAAHM
constant, the profit before income tax would have FERETE - ARG
higher/(lower) as follows: AT 3 ) 38 hn,~ G ) 18 e an
T
2014 2013
(Lower)/higher on profit (Lower)/higher on profit before
before income tax if income tax if exchanges rates
exchanges rates change by change by
fHERSEMT > BRATSH MERZZHWOT  BRASH
A& R GRL4) /48 hn Al A Ok 4>), /38 hn
+5% -5% +5% -5%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&E T F#& T THT FHT
HK$ BT 170 (170) (8,716) 3,716
USD ETT (9,872) 9,872 (5,840) 5,840

EUR BT (602) 602 (270) 270
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

Rt %; 88 = B 5E (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered
into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits, the management manages the credit risk by
placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and other
receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition and does
not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. Based on the expected
recoverability and timing for collection of the
outstanding balances, the Group maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and actual losses
incurred have been within management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group faced certain
degree of credit risk as the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 47.89% (2013:
23.05%) of the total trade receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management
by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated through the
availability of financing through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its
financial commitments. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows including
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or
if floating based on rates at the year-end date.

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

3 B¥EREEm
3.1 B EKREZRE @

(d)

REEEE R

rEEEBEBEERERSE
RRTHEBBERBLEER
BETRAR AEENR
EaRRE—FTEBEB
B ERRBHERAER
AR EHERITERE NimE
MERAEMSANER EF
R AREYEE(ARE
mEE SRR

TRORBEERAMBXRA
EAREH AR R
[ - 1R 4R B 2| B 4 Bl o3 A AR
SEEHMAE - RABED
TERASARAURRE R
E BRERAGNLERFE
WA S D HIHEFE -
A FHE RN RAE -

On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to1 year 1 year Total
=@A =@A

BER HUT ZFE—F —FULE #Et

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

FHExXT THERxT FTERT TERT TER
At 31 December 2014  A2014512831H

Bank borrowings RITEE — 39,927 47,561 50,991 138,479

Trade and other payables 2 5 & £ {th i <t

(excluding non-financial I (JE& @t & &

liabilities) BR 41) 26,336 176,984 - — 208,320

Total et 26,336 216,911 47,561 50,991 341,799
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

R e m
3.1 B EKREZRE @

-
§ (d) Liquidity risk (Continued) O REBELSERGE)
=
o
;:E On 3 months 3 months Over
§ demand orless to 1 year 1 year Total
%.‘;’ =@A =M@A
5 RER ST E—F —FHUE Et
g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
§ FAxT FAT TFAET TFTAERXT THET
ﬁ
s
-‘8" At 31 December 2013 MA2013F12H31H
& Bank borrowings RITIEE — 108,246 24,082 57,624 184,952
3 Trade and other payables & 5 % E #b fE 1~

(excluding non-financial B (EL R B E

liabilities) KR A1) 43,349 153,711 - — 197,060

Amounts due to FE 1~ B B A Bl 5k IE
related companies 1,192 — — — 1,192
Total 4a =t 44,541 256,957 24,082 57,624 383,204

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. If
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 1%
higher/lower for the year ended 31 December 2014
with all other variables held at constant, the Group’s
profit before tax would have been lower/higher by
HK$1,314,000 (2013: HK$1,542,000).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

©

RERERDAEBENE
2 B3
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R EBRITIEEEAEE
AR ANRENERR A%
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

3 B¥EREEm

Capital management 3.2 EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AREBEBEAENTITERER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern RERNEBGEEESE HMA
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for % B8 42 4 (3] =R A7 A H Ath 15 iR & 1R
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital TR UREERENE RS
structure to reduce the cost of capital. 1 LOR AR & AN o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BHEENAREARERE K&EE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, FEABRINTFRENRE S
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. B BTHRSEEEENRK
B o
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. REBERERNBEL RN EEEE
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total BRER o th RTHIRE B AR LA
equity. EmBREETE -
The gearing ratio is as follows: BEAGBLENT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total borrowings BE B 131,361 169,224
Total equity AT 526,725 370,266
Gearing ratio (%) BRBELE%) 25% 46%
Gearing ratio has decreased to 25% as at 31 December R2014F 128318 - ERBEL
2014, which is mainly due to the profit earned, the repayment RERRED% TEARNAEE
of borrowings and the issue of share capital during the year. BREOmsEd - EEEERBETR
RETE -
Fair value estimation 3.3 AAEME

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables, as well as
current financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
current borrowings and amounts due to related companies
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short
maturities as at 31 December 2014.

There were no financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value by the use of valuation techniques at 31 December
2014 (31 December 2013: nil).

AR B H®RE  R2014F12 A
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MESEBMUNE S MNEME
WxBE)UE RS cmaE(BE
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

Rt %; 88 = B 5E (4R)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables with
reference to the extent and duration that the amount
will be recovered. Allowance is applied where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

4
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(©

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis of
inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

4 BEGSEEETRAE @
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
M REME(R)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Group. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports that are used to make strategic
decisions. The executive directors considered the nature of the
Group’s business and determined that the Group has two
reportable segments as follows: (i) mold fabrication and (ji) plastic
components manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on their revenue and gross profit and do not
assess the assets and liabilities of the operating segments.

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

(@  The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

7 =B & #

IERLERRECHRERAEEH
TEZE - WITEZENASENAR
BENFEXRRARSEER  LRIE
FA DA VB o BB DR 5RO P B R 5 B E AR
EOH - ATEETERAKREEZHER
MESBEAEENRERE D E
AR s () AR BB R (i) E 2B AR M B

HITEFRES D HMOKRAREFF
AN ERE  BERYEED
MEERRBEETHEG -

EHEERERNTHBER

@ TREIAKERFARMED
HREI D H W AR B Y o

Revenue from external customers IREEUWA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE T FET
PRC =s 597,529 432,937
Europe XM 250,190 280,528
South East Asia and Hong Kong REEMEB 224,883 204,671
USA x 215,232 124,944
Japan H 23,676 133,183
Others Hib 27,410 21,589
1,338,920 1,197,852

The revenue information above is based on delivery location
of the customers.

LFRBABERTDEREF R
b o



5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

HE R @
g#%@ﬂ&f?i%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ

N

it

i

@ (&)

FRBEE(ERTAREEMN
BHEERIN)  REIXK:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

PRC Fh 333,171 204,482
Germany 12 B 2,455 —
335,626 204,482

The segment information for the reportable segments is set

b)) AHEDEH DB E B W

out as below: T
Plastic components
Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
HERE EEAMGRE BEr
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET THT TER THET TFTERT TET
Revenue ' @N
Segment revenue 2 EBUA 598,989 518,451 798,661 721,828 1,397,650 1,240,279
Inter-segment revenue 5 25 & Ug A 3K $

elimination (68,730) (42,427) — — (68,730) (42,427)
Revenue from external 7h 52 & B Ig A

customers 540,259 476,024 798,661 721,828 1,338,920 1,197,852
Segment results DEELE 185,392 186,143 180,024 145571 365,416 331,714
Other income and E A YA R H A

other gains/(losses) Wz (E1#8)

— net — ¥ 22,715 29,078
Selling expenses SHER X (62,675)  (59,540)
Administration TR X

expenses (134,074) (126,058)
Financial costs — net gt & k2~ — /F58 (930) (5,961)
Profit before % P18 54 BT S5 A

income tax 190,452 169,233
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

o, T
o 15 88 2 B 6 (1)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DHEHER @
Segment information for consolidated statement EHE2EWERNI BER
§ of comprehensive income (Continued) (&)
?, (¢) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature: © AEBZEHESHWRABRE
E I
o
3
o 2014 2013
5 HK$’000 HK$°000
g FET FAET
>
3
- Revenue ON
3 Sales of goods $HE B m 1,292,025 1,113,669
3 Mold modification income R AR ER 46,895 84,183
(=]
N
Turnover £ 1,338,920 1,197,852
Revenues of approximately HK$134,066,000 (2013: e A #7134,066,0007% 7T (2013 4F :
HK$113,183,000) were derived from a single external 118,183,000/ 7T) Jh 2k B B — Hp R
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic BF  ZEWARE FBHEMRE
components manufacturing segment. Db

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 6 HttWARHEMIE

(LOSSES) — NET (F518)— F @
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other income H b g A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials SHE R R F MR 13,027 23,114
Income on derivative financial instruments TAESBRIERA — 2,138
Others Hh 5,613 4,531
18,640 29,783
Other gains/(losses) — net Hi Wz (&8 — F8
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W 2= 5 5E 3,813 1,246
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME WMERRHEHWE
plant and equipment (Note 29(b)) (E18) (M 7F29(b)) 262 (479
Fair value changes on derivative PESRIERN A BEE
financial instruments - (1,472)

4,075 (705)




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 EMEEINMEX 129
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 <
T#ET AT
i
Changes in inventories of finished goods B mREKMEEES %
and work in progress (26,140) (26,140) 2
Raw materials and consumables used R L R FE 503,100 521,806 E
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERNBEX (FiZ8) 354,159 283,730 r
Subcontracting expenses KRIEH 140,629 70,289 o)
Depreciation and amortisation & K 6 51,939 52,222
Water and electricity expenditures KEEHR 36,073 22,852 oy
Transportation and travelling expenses B Rk ERAS 32,478 25,641 g
Operating lease payments LT E T 25,777 14,642
Other taxes and levies HiiiE 7,875 11,703
Maintenance expenses HIEEH 7,461 6,134
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance) FERERE (BERED)
impairment of inventories 8,172 (5,530)
Allowance for receivables FE Uy R TE B 1,731 102
Research and development costs B 2% Rk 2
— Raw materials and consumables used — B R REM 6,924 4,093
— Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) —BRERAMZ (HE8) 25,014 23,380
Commission expenses He&H 4,647 3,202
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 Bl %7 B
— Audit services — ZEURTS 3,427 3,154
Expenses related to initial public offering EREX AHREENER - 16,345
Advisory and legal service expenses BHRMEERBF X 2,880 2,649
Advertising and promotion fees BEEREEER 3,597 2,949
Utilities and postage fees HE LS 4,508 5,387
Security and estate management expenses R M EEIEE 2,627 2,346
Bank charges and handling fees WITWERFES 847 1,873
Donations 18 e 370 1,000
Other expenses HiHE 4,697 7,907

Total cost of sales, selling expenses and $HERAK - SHEBR X RITH
administrative expenses B A% 1,170,253 1,051,736




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
M REME(R)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERAMZ(BREES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ B <)
- EMOLUMENTS)
2
£ 2014 2013
B HK$’000 HK$’000
s THERT TET
@
=
3 Wages and bonuses I&RIEL 341,082 283,767
g Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a) &tk 7~ — & %8 fit 7 5t &l (a) 12,587 10,369
z Other social security costs H 4 AR K AR 12,742 8,275
g Share options granted to employees BRYET2EKRE 3,334 —
z Other allowances and benefits H )2 B K 48 T 9,428 4,699
g
§ 379,173 307,110
S
(a)  Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in (@ AEEFENE L ERESESHEA
a defined contribution retirement scheme administrated and operated by I 7 i BT EEE R GE (E R E B AR
the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contributes K &r 2l o 75 5 B iy B KT B 2 Al 1 A
funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2013: 10%-20%) of the average 77 BT 15 E B € B F N F 15 £ A
employee salary for the year as agreed by local municipal government to 10%-20% (20134 : 10%-20%) it & a9
the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. BB R % AT B 50 - A IE B AR K45 7




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

9 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company during the

9 ESEREAREEEMNE

(a)

EEME

FAXRRBEEFTHNFH M0

year is set out below: N
Employer’'s
Discretionary contribution to
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus retirement scheme Share options Total
EEMEK
EEnE ok e BERA s EIER BRE &5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKE000 HK$000 HKS000 HKEO000 HKS000 HK$O000 HKS000 HK$000
TEx THx THEx THx TExX THExT TFTEx FTHx TEx THrz TExX TER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Pui Leung TR
K& = = 2,223 2,165 2,705 1,795 17 15 1,502 = 6,447 3,975
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung & #
Michael (i) () = = 1,975 1,924 1,932 1,282 17 15 931 = 4,855 3,221
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu ERR
k& - = 1,479 1,443 1,159 769 17 15 901 = 3,556 2,227
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa 3R 2
k& - = 1,115 125 1,352 53 17 1 - = 2,484 179
Independent B
non-executive FEHAT
Directors B
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy & & F
&= 232 28 - - - — - - - - 232 23
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai AT RL R
Chung F 232 23 - = - = - = - = 232 23
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong & 2 3¢
F 232 23 - = - = - = - = 232 23
696 69 6,792 5,657 7,148 3,899 68 46 3,334 — 18,038 9,671
Note: et -

(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

A 35 38 = B 5E (48)

9 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 include four
(2013: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2013: two) individual during year are as

9 EENEREEEMN=

(%)

@ EEESFMAL

H E2014F12A318 EFE XK
SEREAEaMEATEENA
(2013F : =Z)EZ  EMEB
HREXDT - RFEREHB—R
(20135 : MB) = FH A T

follows: MemT :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T FHE T
Wages, salaries, allowance and TE & FRHEKEMEFR
other benefits 762 2,296
Bonus B4 1,655 1,726
Contributions to pension plans RIKSETEI K = 13
2,417 4,035
The emoluments paid to the remaining these individuals fell MEARZEEDTHALZGH
within the following bands: B F T 548 Rl
2014 2013
Emolument bands B < 42 Bl
HK$1,500,000—HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007% 7t £ 2,000,000% 7T — 1
HK$2,000,001 —HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% JT & 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2013: nil). Neither directors nor any of the five
highest paid individuals received any emolument from the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the year (2013: nil).

FAN BEEENEXRENE
BN & (20134 : ) o F X -
EESAMNAZ&E H AL
EHAEBUWRETAME A
R {5 0 A Bk h0 A 72N 55 [ B ) 25 B
S VE A BB 4 (2 (20134 : &) -



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

10 FINANCE COSTS — NET 10 @E KA — F&E

2014 2013 -
HK$’000 HK$’000 M
Fi# T FHT
%
Interest income: MBHA a
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITIF KA F B U A (2,995) (371) 2
— Interest income on available-for-sale —AJHEESHEERN ;j
financial assets B A (1,197) (146) I
7
4,192 517
( ) (517) -
2
Interest expense: FEFAX:
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable —BARAFRNEBHREEN
within 5 years RITEE 5,122 3,753
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable —BARAFEREBEEEN
over 5 years RITEE = 225
5,122 3,978
Other finance costs H i B & AR - 2,500
Finance expenses MERX 5,122 6,478
Finance costs — net REERK AN — FEE 930 5,961
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FiERHEX
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Current income tax BN EA B 45 Bt
— PRC corporate income tax —HECEMER 36,774 43,035
— PRC corporate income tax —BAEFERECEMRER
over-provided in prior years R (3,850) —
Deferred income tax (Note 27) EIEFTS R (Kt 27) 3,605 4,850
36,529 47,885
(@) Cayman Islands income tax () BISBEREH

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

ARARNAEHESEMKRILA—
MERRERAF At AR
AIEREBMRASESHER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
M REME(R)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within
the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering the
available tax benefits. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2013:
25%).

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, a
withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the immediate
holding companies outside the PRC when their PRC
subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits earned after 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between the
PRC and Hong Kong. PRC withholding income tax is
provided on the profits generated from the PRC subsidiaries
for the year.

BVI income tax

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI during
the year (2013: nil).

11 FiIEHBEXXw@m

(b)

()

(d)

FECERSH ([ EA
BBl
CEMSHRIIEAEBRNNRF R
w0 AR SZ A B BE E A A FE AR R UK
AEH BB - REt R AT ES AR
HEBRZIBER BB AR
H o EADEMSHEEA25%
(20134F : 25%) °

FEIEAREH

B EMS L B20084F 1
A1B#E  EREBINEEER
A A HY R BB B A B) 72008 4F 1
A1B 1% & 8 5t BRE A & A &
ERRE BIEZEEEERA
A BU10% M TEN B - &
BB ARMNEEREERATRE
WL A B E S R R
THBMBENLHENE THRE
Rl 12 5% ) B (K B R B 49 TE 1 P
BR-FR pHPEMBRAE
A 2 M ET IR B TR A 5 AR
ﬁo

AEEZHBRER

HRANEENGF NERE R R
EWEERMEHRKA - I &
ARABEXHENABRE
# - (20134 : £) o
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B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 11 Fﬁ ?%ﬁﬁﬁ 3‘2(%) -lEg
(e) Taxation on the Group’s profit (e) REEEFB -
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs 7N £ B B B 18 T BT S A BT 4 AR Y ;n'fn‘f
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the MEIAN T ZEmEEAE
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due AREBRMNNTEELER KT R
10 the following: HMEANEREBEELR =
=
2014 2013 j
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tl FHT 5
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B A1 4 190,452 169,233 ﬁ
#
Tax calculated at applicable 12 25% Y i FB 1 2
corporate income tax rate of 25% Fr 45 30 15 X 47,613 42,308
Effects of: T FBEZE
— Income not subject to tax — BANBEEHKA (11,687) (4,752)
— Tax losses not recognised — AERRIEEE 272 =
— Expenses not deductible for tax — A ALZ 906 3,214
— Tax on Reorganisation —EHAME = 3,001
— Withholding income tax on profit to —EERFPHKE AT
be distributed from the group 5 95 IK Y4 F &9 FE 0 R
companies in the PRC 3,275 4,114
— Over provision in prior years —BAFEBRERE (3,850) —

36,529 47,885
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year.

12 BEREF

(@)

2

SR AR Ty A A F R FIR
DA B B T R ) DA
SECER

2014 2013
Profit attributable to owners of the KAE AR A B G T
Company (HK$’000) (F#7T) 153,923 121,348
Weighted average number of ordinary & 3% 47 & @ I% #9 A #E T 15 &4
shares issued (thousands) (F %) 825,577 555,154
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FRERAEF (BT 0.19 0.22

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. The number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options less
the number of shares that could have been issued at fair
value (determined as the average market share price of the
Company’s shares) for the same amount of proceed are
share issues for no consideration which causes dilution to
earnings per share. During the year, the outstanding share
options do not have any dilutive impact. Therefore, the diluted
earnings per share of the Company equals the basic earnings
per share.

(b)

s
BREFERNIIARRERAE
BEBEEBRRE REFAER
17 £ M & 38 B b0 4 F 25 AR BAT
B ARBE—BHEGCHEER
B s BB AR o R AR AT (L B R A B
BERTZROBKAE - R ASEIRME
RBBEZMBREAMZRIAE
(BERARAKRMPZWHFH
BE)ZETZRNDERB  FRE
BETZBD BEZRTENE
HERBNELHE - £
RATE 2 8 B #E Of 48 72 A (A 38
SBE - At AR R BAREE
BRNERSBRENEF -
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Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

December 2014, all of which are limited liability companies:

Company name

DR ERE

TK Industrial Holdings Limited

TK Industrial Holdings Limited

TK International (BVI) Limited

TK International (BVI) Limited

TK Plastic Products (Suzhou)

Limited
RIBRBRmM (FIMN)
BRAA

TK Mold (S2) Limited
ROIEA ORI AR A A
YD Trading (Hong Kong)

Limited
HRES(BE)ERAHF

Place of
incorporation

= il BR 32 3th 36

BVI

REBRELES

BVI

REBRELES

PRC

h

PRC

&

Hong Kong

B

Principal activities and
place of operation
FTEEKR

K& B

Investment holding/
PRC
BEER HE

Trading of plastic
product and molds/
PRC

R mREA
g5,/ +

Manufacture of plastic
products/PRC

gEBBRG
HE

Fabrication of mold/PRC
A E T E
Investment holding/

PRC
REER T E

13 INVESTMENTS IN A SUBSIDIARY — 13 RHBARZRE — K
COMPANY NG

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH T FAT

Unlisted shares at cost LKA ER Y 3E BT AR 2 2

Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) JE U B /B A B FRIE (a) 234,938 228,661

234,940 228,663

(@) The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayments @ %EREAEER. 22 HE

are neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable Bl N ARATRER AT TE R 2 15 2R E
future. A o

(b) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 ) TXAR2014F12A318 8 =

EZMBEARIRERAF)
x:

Particulars of issued Interest
share capital held
BR{TRA S P 5 1 3
50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
1 USD each (Note 1)
50,000 % & ik E (B 100%
122 T /Y AR (PfF=E1)
100 ordinary shares of 100%
1 USD each
100 A% & iR H &
126 T B AR
Paid in capital of 100%
HK$10,000,000
BEHAER
10,000,000 7T
Paid in capital of 100%
HK$132,000,000
EHAER
132,000,000/ 7T
1,000,000 ordinary 100%

shares of 1 HK$ each
1,000,000 % & % m (&
18T &R

EYHY N EETE oo

O
|
i
=
#
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

2 ==
M REME(R)
13 INVESTMENTS IN A SUBSIDIARY — 13 RMBRARAIZRE — &
COMPANY (Continued) A A )
Place of Principal activities and  Particulars of issued Interest
Company name incorporation place of operation share capital held
FTEEKR
NCIECE MR KR ERITRAFE R f R R
TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
RIBEA(EB)BRAA =8 REER HE 1,000,000 f% & % H (&
18 TTEY BB AR
TK Plastic (Suzhou) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding/ 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
PRC shares of 1 HK$ each
ROLITE (BM) BRAA B BREER HE 1,000,000 A% & A% [El B
178 7T ) 3 B AR
TK Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding/PRC 1,000,000 ordinary 100%
shares of 1 HK$ each
RLTE (BB AR RAA BB BEERHE 1,000,000 A% & f% [E 1B
178 T & B AR
YD Mold (S2) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of 100%
PRC HK$10,000,000
HEREA ORI AR A A H B EBME T E BEHAER
10,000,000 7T
TK Precision Plastic (S2) Limited PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of 100%
products/PRC HK$166,000,000
FOLREDEZ CRYD B R B FE B BHEXR
NG| Iy d=s! 166,000,000 7T
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of 100%
Germany EUR25,600
TK Mold Germany GmbH 1= HE I 1= B 48 A& 78 25,600 T
Note 1: Shares held directly by the Company. et 1 : KAFABEEFAERD -

14 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 14 &2 REH A FE {5357
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the RARNBIERREENRNARES
financial statements of the Company to the extent of A FE 15 & F A&71,568,0007%8 7T (2013

HK$71,568,000 (2013: HK$164,312,000). % : 164,312,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

- R]” =
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y - BENRSZE — &
— GROUP -3
Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Buildings Improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BER &HAE £EB
g HEYXEE R REMRKE RE ERIR A&t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHERT FTER FET FTHET
Year ended 31 December & & 2013412 A
2013 B1HIEFE
Opening net book amount 4 %] BE & JF & 47,221 13,214 134,153 6,339 825 51,961 253,713
Currency translation
differences E 5 =% 13 883 4,355 142 21 343 5,757
Additions NE 150 8,170 36,978 2,538 — 16,531 64,367
Disposals BE — — (1,410) () — — (1,412)
Transfer/Reclassification i B OE (5,421) 3,547 5,657 — — (3,783) —
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 4F 18 £ 9 Ik (40,156) — (243) — — (65,052) (105,451)
Depreciation e (1,807) (10,448) (33,149) (3,961) 117) — (49,482
Closing net book amount  4F 5 & % & = 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 — 167,492
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12831 H
Cost A 30,809 41,708 356,260 43,673 5,584 — 478,034
Accumulated depreciation 2 &+ 47 & (30,809) (26,342)  (209,919) (38,617)  (4,855) — (310,542
Net book amount IR FE — 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 — 167,492
Year ended 31 December & £2014%12 A
2014 BNEIEFE
Opening net book amount £ ¥ BR & /£ (& - 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 — 167,492
Currency translation
differences N =5 = (52) (159) (360) (2 = (573)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4 B& — & i B A 7
(Note 32) (Bt 7£32) - - 588 70 - - 658
Other additions HiAE - 17,652 117,158 3,372 2,375 49,774 190,331
Disposals BE = 9) (3,095) (56) (18) - (3,178)
Transfer o - - 3,846 - - (3,846) -
Depreciation wE - (7,102) (38,264) (2,100) (769) —  (48,235)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 25,855 226,415 5,982 2,315 45,928 306,495
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H
Cost [BE:S - 39,084 487,798 21,774 3,294 45,928 597,878
Accumulated depreciation ZFtiTE - (13,229)  (261,383) (15,792) (979) —  (291,383)
Net book amount BRmFE - 25,855 226,415 5,982 2,315 45,928 306,495

—
[ il |

ErHE(WHBEBLEE oI

O
|
i
=
#
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
M REME(R)

15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— GROUP (continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in
the profit or loss:

15 % BERKE— K
£ B @)

FrEXHFABRRNTIER

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

THE T FE& T

Cost of sales Fi=h= 0PN 39,793 39,067
Selling expenses SHER 288 315
Administration expenses THREX 8,154 10,100
48,235 49,482

Certain bank borrowings of the Group were secured over property,
plant and equipment. Detailed information is disclosed in Note
25(a).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

AEBEMETRITEEUDE  BE
FAEEE IR o FEAE K BB R
25(a) °

16 B EE — XK E

Computer Software

T
HK$’000
FB T
At 1 January 2013 A2013F1H81H
Cost (DN 9,296
Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (5,132)
Net book amount BREEE 4,164
Year ended 31 December 2013 BZE2013F12A31BLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 4,164
Currency translation differences X =5 89
Additions NE 1,976
Amortisation charge B (2,438)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,791
At 31 December 2013 A2013%12H31H
Cost B A 10,999
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (7,208)
Net book amount REFE 3,791




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (continued) 16 B EE — A& B @)

Contractual
8t
Computer customer i
Software relationships Goodwill Total
EHEF =
B % Gk st B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 1?
FET FHxT THET TFTAERT >
al|
Il
Year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE20145 12831 BILEE o)
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 3,791 = — 3,791
Currency translation differences PE R ZR (13) (69) (73) (155) &
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) U i — &l i & A & (K77 32) — 1,042 965 2,007 g
Other additions HihRE 7,781 — — 7,781
Amortisation charge #iH (3,588) (116) — (3,704)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 7,971 857 892 9,720
At 31 December 2014 M20145F12831H
Cost DN 18,767 973 892 20,632
Accumulated amortisation REt#H (10,796) (116) — (10,912
Net book amount BRI FE(E 7,971 857 892 9,720
Amortisation charges were included in the following categories in BT et AR TR
the profit or loss:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH T F#& T
Administration expenses TR X 3,588 2,438
Selling expenses HEMZ 116 =
3,704 2,438
Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest of TK w2 EAEF R K ETK Mold Germany
Mold Germany GmbH during the year. GmbH K 100% A% 7~ # 25 M 2 4 ©
The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold Germany A B TK Mold Germany GmbH ) I8 & &
GmbH is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The EBEMMARESEDREFERER
calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial FEAAEBEE - ZiTEREBEEEER
forecasts prepared by management covering a five-year period. AR E S HA R B A TEOR - 52 B Al
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the RenEEl BRAAEFHEANE S
estimated growth rates stated below. METVER T XAl HEriEREHE

lﬁﬁo
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (continued)y 16 B EE — A &£ BH @)
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The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

Net book value (HK$’000) BETESEE (T
Net profit margin (%) 7L A 2 (%)
Revenue growth rate (%) WA 8 5 K (%)
Discount rate (%) 8538 K (%)

ARAEEREEFENANTIER
JIAT

TK Mold Germany GmbH

892
7%
1.2%
18%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market development. The
weighted average growth rate used was consistent with the
forecast included in industry reports. The discount rate used was
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant operating
segment.

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment charge
was required after performing the impairment assessment for the
year.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2014, the Group
would still have recognised no impairment loss on the goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2014, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

BEEEREBEBERAREHMBSER
MEHEEREERN X - FAERAM M
BIFHEREXETERSAHIINE
Bl — 2 IR BEER KTy BT RE3R
FoWRREMBKEDMERNE
TE BB o

RETHEAREK ARAEFAR
FREARRBERE -

fEFFRARRBE S REREEER2014
F12A31 AW EFHEEI10%  A&EH
s AR EMNEERERSE -

i BE IR R A 2014412 A 31 H 1 hn2%
AEENAEHARREMEERES

8-
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Rt 35 3R | PH 5 (48)
17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 RERNE7HWERMT A
CATEGORY 137
At
Group Company H
REME A
2014 2013 2014 2013 s
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 B
FHx FTHTLT TERT  THET -
B
al|
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRAEE 0
Loans and receivables: B & RS o
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H e Y FkIE
(excluding prepayments and TEEBEMZER g
tax recoverable) Al W B 7 IE) 228,019 171,154 1,005 — 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS = — 216,433 15,179
Deposits for non-current bank
borrowings FERBIRTEENES 2,006 1,267 — —
Cash and bank balances I8 & MIR1T 4 fR 266,526 332,587 101,195 237,788

496,551 505,008 318,633 252,967

Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBERANER
Liabilities measured at amortised REHEK AT EZ

cost: afE:
Trade and other payables B 5K E M EFRIA

(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TBiEFELREE) 203,320 197,060 27 —
Amounts due to related companies &~ B8 Bt A &) 1B - 1,192 — —
Amounts due to subsidiaries &SI 8 & R FE — — - 1,994
Bank borrowings RITEE 131,361 169,224 = —

334,681 367,476 27 1,994
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o, —
CELELTAC Y
18 INVENTORIES — GROUP 18 BE — X KE
o 2014 2013
2 HK$°000 HK$’000
S FHExT FHET
el
'O:E
= Raw materials ERvEEE 31,744 25,763
i} Work in progress KRG 180,132 148,006
5 Finished goods ZUPK 40,150 14,895
g
§ 252,026 188,664
5 Less: allowance for impairment SR c R (B B (12,907) (4,741)
o]
g
=2 239,119 183,923
(=]
=
The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as MERESE ST
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
At beginning of the year F 1] 4,741 11,692
Currency translation difference fEH =% (6) 158
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance) REFEBEE(BErm)
inventory obsolescence 8,172 (5,530)
Amounts written off BiiE <5 = (1,579)
At end of the year F R 12,907 4,741
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year was FRFAHEHEKRARAZFEKRN A
HK$965,629,000 (2013: HK$856,667,000). 965,629,000/ JT (20134 : 856,667,000

ABIT) e
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 19 EFREMERKIIE —
GROUP AND COMPANY AEER A D T 139

8t

Group Company =1

KEE AR

2014 2013 2014 2013 s

HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 =

FHx FTEx TExT TAR -

>

al|

Trade receivables g 5 rEliE 211,113 146,469 - — "

Less: allowance for impairment W ORE 1% (5,505) (3,774) = = ?

Trade receivables, net B 5 W TEFE 205,608 142,695 ﬁ

Bills receivable fiE U 2 4% 6,252 6,163 - — e
Prepayments and deposits BRI RIERES 38,354 47,718 - —
Value-added tax recoverable ] Yg [o] 12 (B Fi 21,656 5,390 - —
Advances to employees e ,'5'! EAE 2,609 3,519 - —
Export tax refund receivables H O 3R i fE U 3k 18 16,337 18,992 - —
Others H 4,355 4,251 1,005 —
295,171 228,728 1,005 —

(a) The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are

(a) EPEUFEZEREELTIE

denominated in the following currencies: WEtE -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
USD eI 146,523 108,983
RMB AR 57,960 29,233
EUR BT 2,303 4,577
HK$ BT 4,327 3,676
211,113 146,469
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

A 35 38 = B 5E (48)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(b)  The credit period granted to customers is generally between
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
from the date of sales is as follows:

10 EEZREMEWKTIE —
AEBERAE DT w@m

(b) BFEEMESHAEENTI0E
WAZME - EEANEE e
W IERBER DT T

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FBT

Less than 3 months =@ AN 202,996 142,882
More than 3 months but HE=EAE

not exceeding 1 year BB —F 7,925 2,649

More than 1 year —F P E 192 938

211,113 146,469

The Group’s sales are made to various customers. While
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major
customers, these customers are reputable with good track

record.

As at 31 December 2014, no trade receivables (31 December
2013: HK$3,112,000) were past due but not impaired. As at
31 December 2013, these trade receivables were past due
less than 3 months and related to a number of independent

customers that have good track record with the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$5,505,000

(2013: HK$3,774,000),

allowance.

were impaired and covered by

Less than 3 months =@ A NRA

More than 3 months but wmR=EAE
not exceeding 1 year N —F

More than 1 year —FLE

AEBNHEDNHETRER

HACERRETRETIER
}5 1ﬂﬂ =T gﬁ’fma*l'fi'&%
BERIFMERLCE -

R2014F12A831H HEE 5
fE U 3 1B (201312 A31 8 :
3,112,000 7t ) B i@ 8 18 K &
- R2013F12A831H % & ¥
SEWFEBHIOR=@A I
BENAEBEHEES R TEEREN
BETBLEFEB-

MR2014E12A31H - B 5 'R
185,505,000 7T, (20134F : 3,774,000

AT EREY D EHEME -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET
2,907 2,301
2,406 535
192 938

5,505 3,774
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(c) Allowance for impairment of trade

receivables

The movements on the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

BHoRWRBREEEREEDW
T

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FBT

At beginning of the year F4 3,774 3,672
Additional allowance KHONE 1,731 102
At end of the year FER 5,505 3,774

The creation and release of allowance for impaired
receivables have been included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
primarily denominated in USD and RMB and the fair values of
trade and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivables was the
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for
these receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due and impaired assets.

ERERBRAREBZAIRLE
BIEFAGRHEEKRERFTITH
FXIET -

R20144F 201312 A31H * &
SREMERFIBEZREBEEE
NETRARKFE BES K
HEMEWRFEBEZ AABERERT
BHEE -

R20144F 201312 A31H » &
SEE S KEMERFKIENZRA
FEER R A il & 585 E KR IE
ZEME AEBVARZERE
Wk 5 B E 1 o

B 5 N Ho Al e WK IR B E 3R R
TEECIHMMEREERE -

BYHY N EETE I~

O
|
i
=
#
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —
GROUP AND COMPANY

20 RERBELEEY — &
EERAEARQAT

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their
carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following
currencies:

—

5 Group Company

g rE AT

E 2014 2013 2014 2013
g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
g TH T FAT THET FH T
=

3

(0]

; Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 266,526 332,587 101,195 237,788
3 Bank overdrafts (Note 25) RITE X (M aE25) (914) (4,822) = =
B 265,612 327,765 101,195 237,788
3

a

RelkReEBYNAAERERE

BRE BRSAGEERR -

BelReEFEMUTIERE:

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$000
FB T FAT FTET FAT
HK$ 7T 116,841 250,787 101,148 237,788
RMB AR 71,784 48,213 20 =
UsD ETT 67,760 31,358 27 =
EUR BT 10,141 2,229 = =
266,526 332,587 101,195 237,788




21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
PREMIUM

Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

21 BARB D RE

31 December 2014 and 2013
2014 K 2013512 A 31 H

Number of
ordinary Share
shares capital
ZEREE [N
(Thousands) HK$’000
(F &) TFET
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each & %0.178 7T 2 75 & & @ A% 2,000,000 200,000
Details of issued shares are analysed as follows: @ EBETROEBITOT
Number of Ordinary Share
Group shares shares premium Total
rEE R EE ZER BRORE ot
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(F %) FHT FHT FAT
At 28 March 2013 7201343 H28H
(Date of Incorporation) (ML B ER) 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares for U EE — M B A Al
acquisition of a subsidiary BT H 10 1 = 1
Issuance of shares in relation to  Ft (&7 & AL 21T R% 5
capitalisation of indebtedness 70 7 — 7
Issuance of shares by initial BBEXAAAESE
public offering Bk HD 200,000 20,000 230,000 250,000
Capitalisation of share premium & &K 1{t i (7 % B 599,910 59,991 (59,991) —
Share issuance costs B 0 B AT AR — — (6,268) (6,268)
Share issuance costs transferred B & 7N &4 & 5 B Y
from capital reserve f% 15 B 1T R AR = = (9,787) (9,737)
2013 Deemed Distribution BEE AN @ EEED
transferred from 2013 F R AED K
capital reserve — —  (174,522) (174,522)
Transferred from capital reserve B & 7N {7 {8 52 — — 228,661 228,661
At 31 December 2013 M2013%12H31H 800,000 80,000 208,143 288,143
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 81 H 800,000 80,000 208,143 288,143
Issuance of shares (c) R% 15 317 (C) 26,600 2,660 30,590 33,250
Share issuance costs (c) % 17 2 17 5K 78 (o) — — (831) (831)
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12831H 826,600 82,660 237,902 320,562
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

R1 35 8k = P 5 (#8)
21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE 21 BARKR R0 RE
PREMIUM (Continued)
-
5 (@) Details of issued shares are analysed as follows (continued): @ BDETROEBITOT (E):
o
=
zf Number of Ordinary Share
g Company shares shares premium Total
e ¥ NN ii&vig - g= ZRER % 15 % 8 5t
= (thousands) HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
g (F ) FAT FAT FAT
:
5 At 28 March 2013 201353528 H
8 (Date of Incorporation) (REM AL 32 B #) 10 1 - 1
% Issuance of shares for LU BE — FE B B
= acquisition of a subsidiary EATIRD 10 1 — 1
Issuance of shares in relation gt & % & 2k 3 17
to capitalisation of A% 15
indebtedness 70 7 — 7
Issuance of shares by initial BBEBHXARES
public offering BT H 200,000 20,000 230,000 250,000
Capitalisation of share B AR 5= B
premium 599,910 59,991 (59,991) —
Share issuance costs AR 1D B 1T A AN = = (6,268) (6,268)
Share issuance costs BEEAFEBEEEN
transferred from A& 1D 317 A A
capital reserve — — (9,737) (9,737)
Transferred from capital ERENE
reserve i — — 228,661 228,661
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12H31H 800,000 80,000 382,665 462,665
At 1 January 2014 A2014F1 81 H 800,000 80,000 382,665 462,665
Issuance of shares (c) f% 15 317 (C) 26,600 2,660 30,590 33,250
Share issuance costs (c) % 17 2% 17 5K 28 (o) — = (831) (831)
At 31 December 2014 M2014FE12H31H 826,600 82,660 412,424 495,084




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
PREMIUM (Continued)

)

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

21 BARB D REm:

Details of shares issued as at 31 December 2014 are as (b) M2014F12A831B B & 17K 7
follows: RFIBOT :
Equity
interests
as at
Number of 31 December
Shareholder shares Share capital 2014
20144
128318 #
®=R v g fig A iz ¥
(HKS) (%)
(&)
Eastern Mix Company Limited ERERAA 421,520,000 42,152,000 50.99
Lead Smart Development Limited ~ LR ZERABR QA 86,400,000 8,640,000 10.45
Cheer Union Development Ltd FIEEREBR A A 53,760,000 5,376,000 6.50
Normal Times International Limited 4 i B B A R A &) 51,840,000 5,184,000 6.27
Public shareholders NRBER 213,080,000 21,308,000 25.79
826,600,000 82,660,000 100.00
In conjunction with the initial public offering on 20 December ) #HERAFREE M20135F12H20
2013, on 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) H- 201418158 B X2 H
Co., Limited, the sponsor of the Public Offering, exercised the BREJRBEBABREES(EE)
over-allotment option. As a result, the Company issued BRARITEEEERE - B
26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the e KRABULREES K125
subscription price of HK$1.25 per share. The difference 7 JT % 1726,600,000% & & ®
between the gross proceeds of HK$33,250,000 and the EO 1B T2 EBR FTBRIEA
issued and fully-paid share capital of HK$2,660,000, 48 %8.33,250,0007% JT B B 2 4T )Si
amounting to HK$30,590,000, was credited to the share & B % 7K2,660,000/%8 JT 2 = 8
premium account. The related share issuance cost of 30,590,000 7T B 5T A IR 2 )% B
HK$831,000 was debited to the share premium account. Bk o B B8 & 15 % 17 Ak ZX831,000
BILE 8 R0 s ERNE -
Eastern Mix Company Limited acquired 13,520,000 ordinary FR - ERERAAIERMISE
shares in the market during the year. £ 13,520,000 I% & 3 AR ©
All shares issued rank pari passu with each other. o) FIBEBEEITRMD ZEHAIER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22 LR AER 2R
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On 29 December 2014, options over 6,660,000 shares were
granted to three directors of the Company at the exercise price of
HK$1.61 per share with no vesting condition. The exercise price of
the granted options was equal to the market price of the shares on
the date of the grant. The options are exercisable within three years
from the grant date. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

No share option is forfeited, exercised or expired subsequent to the
grant date.

The 6,660,000 share options outstanding at the end of the year
have the expiry date of 28 December 2017 and exercise price of
HK$1.61 per share.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year
determined using the Binomial valuation model was HK$0.50 for an
option to subscribe for one share. The significant inputs into the
model were underlying share price of HK$1.61 at the grant date,
the exercise price shown above, volatility of 52.01%, dividend yield
of 2.82%, an expected option life of three years, and an annual
risk-free interest rate of 1.04%. The volatility measured as the
standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is
based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last year.
See Note 8 for the total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for share options granted to
directors.

MR2014F12 A29H - AR B IR1TE B
EREDIIETRARR ZRES
% F 0] R EE A 6,660,000 8% A% 17 &9 £
SERKMG 2 ERE-BERTEREZ
IEEERMNITREHAHER ZME
BE - EHERETART AR =
FRITE - AEBMUBEEELETE
EIAIR & BB O ok 45 B HE AR 4 -

BEEBRENRL AHREORK &
TTEESER

7 6 K i K 17 2 6,660,00017 B A% #E
N2017E12 A28 E@im * 1TEB AT
A% P& 19 1.61 78 7T °

FRA_BEAGERERNETEETFAR
LEREZAANENETEHHAEEHD
ARE KRG ZERESE T -
ZEAEANGAEARL B HE
B E®161EIT: Fie s HiT6E
B HIE52.01% ' f% B K2.82% » BB
ZEREH=FR2FEERART
E1.04% - HRBIFEE S BRE R KD
ZTEEZMAENEBRE  EREE
FEARMKTENRT MM E
BH - EEARETESZERERS
HEERERANER A BE
23K FE8 o



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

23 OTHER RESERVES

23 Hftbf#

Group
RE
Share
Statutory Capital option Exchange
reserves reserve  reserves reserve Total
[ ¥
EERE EBAXRFEE #E ELRE ot
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FA& T FAET FA&T FHET FA&T
At 1 January 2013 M2013F181H 36,387 (1,599) — 78,428 113,216
Share issuance costs AN BEFTAAR = (8,138) - — (8,138)
Share issuance costs SRR R R ERR
transferred to share HIBRAD BET TR A
premium account — 9,737 — — 9,737
2013 Deemed Distribution  2013F48 {ED Ik (85,001) (174,522) — (568,827) (268,350)
Transfer from share B &0 (B AR e &
premium account — 174,522 — — 174,522
Capitalisation of BEBER
indebtedness — 228,661 — — 228,661
Transfer to share premium B = 5% EER
account — (228,661) — — (228,661)
Transfer to statutory B ETE ()
reserves (a) 6,532 — — — 6,532
Currency translation PEH =%
differences - — — 3,194 3,194
At 31 December 2013 2013512831 H 7,918 — — 22,795 30,713
At 1 January 2014 20141818 7,918 — — 22,795 30,713
Transfer to statutory EE S A TREEQ
reserves (a) 13,859 — — — 13,859
Currency translation X =%
differences — - — (1,806) (1,806)
Share options scheme i
(Note 22) (Kt zt22) = = 3,334 — 3,334
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12831H 21,777 — 3,334 20,989 46,100
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

e =
Bt 75 3R R/ B 5 (#8)
-MH 23 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 23 ,E\: 'fm ﬁ% 1% (%8)
— Company
£ b NS
g Capital Share option
g reserve reserves Total
§" EXfGFEE BRERAE Bt
!"_.L HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
= FHIT FHT FH T
8
?
3 At 1 January 2013 M20135F1A1H = — —
5 Share issuance costs B BE A TR AR (9,737) — (9,737)
3 Share issuance costs transferred 1 &= S BERAI AR (D
g to share premium account BEITRR 9,737 — 9,737
N Capitalisation of indebtedness BEEEAL 228,661 — 228,661
Transfer to share premium account E# %= i& () B BR (228,661) — (228,661)
At 31 December 2013 7A20135F12H31H — = =
At 1 January 2014 R2014F181H = = =
Share options scheme (Note 22) B8 i% # 51+ &) ({75 22) — 3,334 3,334
At 31 December 2014 A2014F12H31H — 3,334 3,334
(a) Statutory reserves (@) EERE
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the REFBEAEBEIRER A% H
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make WA EK B LR ESERERE
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after A B DR 10% B 8 = 0% T 7
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional when ﬁ o B A5 >£\E1‘?a’{% EEHE M
the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its & K #950% 3k LA kB '_EJ BE R
registered capital. Upon approval from the board of directors, EreBE—FER -KEZTGR
the statutory reserves can be used to offset accumulated BoAERBARANFERNEER

losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. PN E A AR RETEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

& =
B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)
RETAINED EARNINGS 24 1R 8% A
Group Company
rE AT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH T FH& T
At 1 January 2013 M2013FE1 81 R 163,153 =
Profit for the year F N 121,348 164,312
Dividends paid BRI E (226,559) (149,341)
Transfer to statutory reserves B K E R (6,532) —
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12H831H 51,410 14,971
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1H81H 51,410 14,971
Profit for the year F AR A 153,923 71,568
Dividends paid B AR B (31,411) (31,411)
Transfer to statutory reserves R R TR (13,859) =
At 31 December 2014 7201412431 A 160,063 55,128
BORROWINGS — GROUP 25 B8 — &K
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT F#& T
Non-current Ik BN A
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (a) — B (a) 12,921 17,164
— unsecured — 4K I 60,007 103,334
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings & : 3E BV HA (& & > BN EA&F &> (26,296) (67,707)
46,632 52,791
Current BN HA
Bank overdrafts |ITEX 914 4,822
Bank borrowings RITEE
— unsecured — IR 57,519 43,904
Total short-term bank borrowings RERITEEES 58,433 48,726
Current portion of non-current borrowings FFAHERE Z AR 26,296 67,707
84,729 116,433

Total borrowings BEHAR 131,361 169,224
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
M REME(R)

25 BORROW'NGS — GROUP (Continued)

@)

25 B8 — XREB @

Bank borrowings amounting to HK$12,921,000 as at 31 @@ H2014F12HA31H: R 17 £ &

December 2014 (2013: HK$17,164,000) were secured over 12,921,000/ 7T (20134 : 17,164,000
the following: BIT) I AT & IBEE A

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FET

Plant and machinery R 55 o 1 25 13,756 15,501

Deposits Ry 2,006 1,267

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in b BEZEREEDHATIEE

the following currencies: 18
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT TET
HK$ BT 111,433 160,319
RMB AR 19,014 8,905
EUR (o 914 =
131,361 169,224

The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes and
the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are

REERABRAHEE@KRNHN
XEHRBIMENEFREER Y

as follows: N
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT

Borrowings at floating rates FEANEEE

6 months or less 618 A AR 52,584 83,650
6-12 months 6E 121 A 58,777 70,574
111,361 154,224
Borrowings at fixed rates EFEEE 20,000 15,000
Total et 131,361 169,224




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

= =
B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)
25 BORROWINGS — GROUP (continued) 25 B8 — XREB @
(d)  The borrowings are repayable as follows: d REANATHREAEE:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT
Within 1 year 1ER 84,729 116,434
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 24,628 11,485
Between 2 and 5 years 2&E54F 22,004 41,305
131,361 169,224
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Wholly repayable within five years BARAFNEHEER 131,361 169,224
(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the balance e ZEBEEAGBXRAHNEERNETY

sheet dates are as follows: MELMT
2014 2013

Bank borrowings denominated in: AT & #EHE A
RITEE :

HK$S BT 2.86% 4.66%

RMB AR 6.90% 6.90%
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

= =
R1 35 8k = P 5 (#8)
25 BORROWINGS — GROUP (continueq) 25 B8 — XREB @
. ()  The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current M FFENEEENREERAREN
A borrowings are as follows: T
o]
=
2 2014 2013
g HK$’000 HK$'000
3 FET FAT
=
5
S Carrying amounts BREE 46,632 52,791
z Fair value (level 2) RAEEFE2E) 46,632 50,201
5 Weighted average discount rate used N ER IS
8 for fair value (%) 8H 38 & (%) 2.86% 6.40%
g
3
S
26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — 26 EZ R HAMENRE —
GROUP E
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Trade payables 2 5 e IR 179,433 163,711
Deposits received from customers BlWEFZE 175,020 129,782
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable BT ENIESRT 57,938 47,250
Accrual for expenses and other payables FE T B S K E b fE A5 ZOE
(Note (a)) (K1 (a) 23,887 43,349
Other taxes payable H b & B 18 7,715 5,033
443,993 379,125
(@) The amount mainly represented construction costs payable, @ ZAEEZTEEEMNEERENUAR

and accruals for electricity and commission expenses. RErRBESHAXETER -




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
R 3% 3R = B & ()

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES —
GROUP (continued)

)

The Group’s trade payables were denominated in the

26 5
&

Bt)
m

(#&)

T

R H b S RRE —

AEEEZENRBATIEE

following currencies: =H1E :

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FE T
RVB AR# 149,050 119,856
UsbD E7T 16,846 23,532
HKS BT 13,131 8,915
EUR X 7T 406 1,408
179,433 153,711
The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other FEETA S R E A B RIEMNERE

payables were primary denominated in RMB. TE FTEUAREE-

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

© EBEZEMNFKENRESNOT :

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHT

0-90 days 0£90H 170,258 143,183
91-120 days 912 120H 7,893 8,076
121-365 days 1212365 H 844 2,170
Over 365 days B 365 H 438 282
179,433 153,711

The fair values of trade and other payables approximated d EBZREMEMZKENALER

their carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

A 35 38 = B 5E (48)

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP 27 BEFREHR — X &H

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a WAEENITFEENGHHIBEE E
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current LKEHHREEEEE BMmAaeR —
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same MEMEBEHW ZCELERSH B2k
taxation authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities HELEHREESEREBE BEEHRER
is as follows: ENBESTHOT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiE T THETT
Before offsetting K 85 Al
Deferred income tax assets: BREMSREE :
— to be recovered after more than 12 months — B REBE121E A 1& Y mE 293 1,743
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 121 A AU E 4,580 3,504
4,873 5,247
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEXEMESHRARE:
— to be settled after more than 12 months —BREBRI2EAKEHE (151) =
— to be settled within 12 months —BR12EARNEE (9,114) (5,736)
(9,265) (5,736)
After offsetting K%
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHREE 6 4,469
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHRAR (4,398) (4,958)
As at 31 December 2014, deferred income tax assets and deferred R2014F12 8318 RIERE K IE
income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in the same entity, EMEHEERELEMESHAEEH
to the extent of HK$4,867,000 (31 December 2013: HK$778,000). K $4 4,867,000 JT (20134 12 A 31

B : 778,000/& 7T) °



(Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as

Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

27 EXEFEH — A58 @)

EXEMEHEERBEZESHUT

follows:
Accelerated tax Accrued
Deferred income tax assets depreciation expenses Total
R % 18
BEEFMBHREE e Bt X st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2013 7K20183F1 H1H 3,189 3,516 6,705
Currency translation differences & H =5 58 76 134
Recognised in the profit or loss KB RER 174 (910) (736)
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013 F R ED K (223) (633) (856)
As at 31 December 2013 R 2013F 12 A 31 H 3,198 2,049 5,247
As at 1 January 2014 R2014F12 A31H 3,198 2,049 5,247
Currency translation differences P& 5 =R (7) (5) (12
Recognised in the profit or loss R85 AR 1R (1,566) 1,204 (362)
As at 31 December 2014 R20144%1 A1H 1,625 3,248 4,873
Revaluation
Revaluation surplus in
of derivative related to
financial ~ Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities instruments  income tax combination Total
EBast
ERfOTE SRl HEz
ELEFEHAER 2RI A FiEB EAERR BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAET FAET FAET
As at 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1H (34) (18,456) — (18,490)
Recognised in profit or loss RIBZEERAER = (4,114) = (4,114)
2013 Deemed Distribution 2013FRIED K 34 16,834 — 16,868
As at 31 December 2013 201312 HA31H = (5,736) — (5,736)
As at 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H — (5,736) — (5,736)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — R KB A A
(Note 32) (Htat32) = — (308) (308)
Currency translation differences & H =R - - 22 22
Recognised in profit or loss M= RER — (3,275) 32 (3,243)
As at 31 December 2014 2014412 H31H — (9,011) (254) (9,265)
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]
B4 35 3R = Pt 5 (48)

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP

(Continued)

27 EXEFEH — A58 @

ELEFTEREETIARBHBEERR
BRARERIRaNERMEE 2
HEBEBBERAR R2014F124
318 AKEEW A ARERARIBEESE
920,000/ JT (2013412 A31H : £ )
MRELERIBEE - JHHREXTER
AR EFm e BATEEBEES 2 ER

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2014, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses amounting to HK$920,000 (31 December 2013:
nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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28 DIVIDENDS 28 I 2

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TH T FH& T

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.02 ZEREMR0.02% 7T
per ordinary share IR A5 R ER AR B 16,532 226,559

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05 B G RE@R0.058 T

(2013: HK$0.018) per ordinary share (20134 : 0.018/% 7T)
IR 2 5 R HA AR B 41,330 14,879
57,862 241,438

The dividends paid in 2014 and 2013 were HK$31,411,000
(HK$0.038 per share) and HK$226,559,000 respectively. A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of
HK$0.05 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$41,330,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting
on 3 June 2015. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

2013 interim dividends totaling HK$226,559,000 were paid to the
then shareholders before the listing of shares of the Company. The
rate for these dividends and the number of shares ranking for these
dividends are not presented as such information is not considered
meaningful for the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements.

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed during
2013 and 2014 have been disclosed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

R2014 % KR2013F X & B o Bl &
31,411,000 7T (& % B% 19 0.038 7% 7T )
226,559,000/ T ° AN A Al 1§ 12015
FoASHBMAZKRERF ARG LEH
RN EHZ2014F12A31 B IEFE 2%
B &H0.05/%8 7T © & &A% 241,330,000
BIT o ZE BTSRRI E R B E A
B 8 o

KRR MH EAE @Kk EIRS
20134 & B j% B 226,559,000 7T ° I
EEJNZEREZFEURZEFRE
WRZBRMEE TTHERAEBER B
ZEEHUBHRERMSITEER -

R20134F K 20144F » & £ B IR Kk iE
BRI EEREDR SR AEHHE
ReEftEERER -



Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)
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29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 29 EHIRERERMTE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 157
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated @ BRAEFRARMNELEMSBRE ?{l
from operations: ZEREK
s
2014 2013 %
HK$’000 HK$'000 at
FHT FHET >
i
Profit before income tax B AT 15 A0 A1 g A 190,452 169,233 lOl
Adjustments for: P EE
Finance expenses (Note 10) BERZ (HaE10) 5112 6,478 o
Interest income (Note 10) A BUW A (K 10) (4,192) (617) Q
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREITE
equipment (Note 15) (Ktat15) 48,235 49,482
Amortisation of land use right = 3 {50 A A 4 8 = 302
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) m S EE (Hft16) 3,704 2,438
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LEME  BEKRKE
plant and equipment (Note 6) (Wezs),/ B8 (M F6) (262) 479
Fair value changes on derivative MEEMIERAR
financial instruments (Note 6) FE)(ffaz6) = A2
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance) GTERE/(BERED)
inventory (Note 7) (Ktat7) 8,172 (5,530)
Allowance for account receivables (Note 7) U BR SR B (Mt 7) 1,731 102
Changes in working capital: CEEET:
Inventories =SS (62,235) (28,264)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H & W 5K IE (73,533) 67,271)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h FE {58 70,521 92,822
Cash generated from operations KB RIH S 187,705 221,226
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Notes to the Financial Statements [continued]

Bt 75 3R R/ B 5 (#8)
29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 29 SOt RERERM T W
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(o) In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from b) ReEMBEERERAN HEY
disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise: % BMEREREREZRESLE:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net book amount disposed BHERMFE 3,178 1,412
Gain/(loss) on disposal (Note 6) e (E18) (ffiE6) 262 (479)
Proceeds from disposal & e RIE 3,440 933
30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 FAREE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no significant contingent MR2014F12 A31H  AEBWEEK
liabilities (31 December 2013: nil). HARBME(2018F12A31H : #|) -
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: REBH T EARAE :
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Acquisitions of plant and equipment: W BE R B K a5

— Contracted but not provided for — BRI AB R IEREAE 33,016 33,285




Notes to the Financial Statements [continued)

&, ==
B3 % 8k = P 5 (§8)
31 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 31 7¥K§B% (&) ]59
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE -
The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating AREBRBEITIRHELCEHRED ﬂf
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum ETEEME - REB AL
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as EHEB TR AR MHRIE [
follows: MEMNFEEDT - =
=
2014 2013 3
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi# T FHT 5
I
-
Not later than one year —F A ﬁ
— to related companies — @A 7 23,849 13,790 S
— to third parties =H=7 4,805 3,203
28,654 16,993
Later than one year and not later than —FBAFTNA
five years
— to related companies — BN A 3,307 13,860
— to third parties —%£=%5 6,595 —
9,902 13,860

38,556 30,853
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32 BUSINESS COMBINATION 32 ¥E6f
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The Group acquired 100% equity interest in TK Mold Germany
GmbH (formerly known as “Selig & Béttcher GmbH & Co. KG” and
its limited partnership) on 1 September 2014 for a consideration of
EUR250,000 (equivalent to HK$2,554,000) from Mr. Wolfgang
Bottcher, an independent third party. TK Mold Germany GmbH
was mainly engaged in operating distribution of tools and special
machines for injection molding as well as mold fabrication and
providing local on-the-ground after-sales services to current and
potential German and European customers.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for TK Mold
Germany GmbH, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date as well as the goodwill recognised.

N & B R2014F9R1B M — & B
3 % = J5 Wolfgang Bottcher %t 4 U B2
TK Mold Germany GmbH ( B &I Selig &
Bottcher GmbH & Co. KG] & H B[R &
#BAN)Z & B HE - (B &250,000 X
7t (18 & #2,554,0007% 7T ) ° TK Mold
Germany GmbHE 2t EMIE B K&

EERERBRMNEFYHETEREATA
RAFTREA RIR B E R IRT

T & 4% 4t 15 TK Mold Germany GmbH 32
NORE FTREEE RN IEBH
AEZAEBNAAENNEERNE
£,

HK$’000
THE T
Consideration RE
— Cash —R4e 1,649
Recognised amounts of identifiable AT B AR B EER AL
assets acquired and liabilities assumed EEEANEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 658
Contractual customer relationship BHRPHEE
(included in intangible assets) GtABREEE) 1,042
Inventories FE 1,126
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E e FIR 1,284
Borrowings BE (1,081)
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMNKIE (2,037)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIERE (308)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEREAE 684
Goodwill (Note 16) ' (At 16) 965

The consideration on HK$2,554,000 had been settled by cash K E2,5540008 T B EBFRNA

amounting to HK$1,649,000 during the year and by offsetting TK
Mold Germany GmbH’s receivable from Mr. Wolfgang Bottcher
amounting to HK$905,000 at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$571,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014.

201,649,000 7T 2 B & & & #HTK
Mold Germany GmbH A Uz & B 8 /& 1L
Wolfgang Béttcher %t 4 2 X 18 905,000
BT LAGLE o

W 8% 48 B8 Bk AN571,0005%8 T & RNE =
2014F12A31HIEFEMAE HFE2EK
HRANITHRAS PR -
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The revenue and loss included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since 1 September 2014 contributed by TK
Mold Germany GmbH was HK$1,728,000 and HK$803,000
respectively.

On a pro-forma basis had TK Mold Germany GmbH been
consolidated from 1 January 2014, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year would have included revenue of
HK$8,052,000 and loss of HK$826,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Names and relationship

The following companies and individuals were related parties
of the Group that had transactions or balances with the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014

Name of the related party
B8

TK Technology Holdings Ltd.
RIMEEEER AT

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.
ORI ORI BR QA

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd.
EIERBORYDBR QA

Operation unit of Jin Baoli Mold and
Ironware of Gongming (“Jin Baoli”)
PASBENEEReREMTSEND

32

33

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

g T

B2014F9 A1 H & + 3 TKMold Germany
GMbHE Rt it AGH2E k=S XK
WA & & #E 5 Rl /1,728,000 7T &
803,000/ JT °

20 TK Mold Germany GmbH B 2014 4F 1
B1EBREEZEEEETEMN AFE
& ff 2\ a8 HE kA 8,052,000
78 7T M E518.826,0007%8 T °

BT X3

(a BBREBHF

TR RBREAEBREZE2014F
12AMBIEFEEAEBRBER
R 7N 0N S Bl

Relationship with the Group
BRASEzBRE

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREH N E R

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREH N E

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREH N E

An entity controlled by a close family member of a director

E=ERBENNER
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEHEABEIRZ @
(Continued)
_| - - - ——
= (b) Transactions with related parties during the b) FRNEBEBRIZXRS
g year
3=
g Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note 9 B B 5O N 22 BT 4% 35 A A Bt 5 A2
H and 22, the following transactions with related parties were 529N+ AN B 5 A i
% undertaken by the Group during the year. ETHRSHET :
3
8 2014 2013
> HK$’000 HK$’000
> - s. —
§ THERT TET
g
% Subcontracting expenses paid (Note (j)) YRR ITBA K Z0) - 2,169
(=]
S
Operating lease expenses paid (Note (i) B &L E & B (K772 (i) 18,251 7,651
Rental deposits paid (Note (iii)) B &% & (B 22 i) 10,282 =
Notes: HiaE -
0] The amount represented mold subcontracting services provided () BHEELEFEHAERALT
by Jin Baoli. R e
(i) The amounts represented rental expenses for land and buildings (i) EZAEIE R R LEECRI) B IR
for factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology (Shenzhen) A RFTEIT B OFRY) B R A
Ltd. and TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd., which were determined with Bl T 1EL B R #2035 79 £
reference to independent property valuation. WREFHHEZHS 28R
UYEGEET -
(i) The amounts represented rental deposits paid for land and (i) AZAIEIERIE T E 5% ) R L 7
buildings for factory and office purposes to TK Technology % CRI) A R 2 7] R #7381 28 B
(Shenzhen) Ltd. and TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd. in accordance CRI) B R 2 8] 3% 17 6L R
with the lease agreements. 2E SR REF R % 7
2o
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEAEE T WA RR
Balances due to related companies — Group: EREBARGES — A5 E :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAET
— Jin Baoli -2 &7 - 1,192
The balance with Jin Baoli was trading nature and repaid HeEFNNEHRETEE

during the year. REREE -
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) Amounts due from subsidiaries — Company

The amounts were denominated in HK$. They were
unsecured, interest-free and collectable on demand. Their fair
values approximated their carrying amounts at the year-end
date.

Amounts due to subsidiaries — Company

The amounts due to subsidiaries were denominated in RMB.
They were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. Their carrying amounts approximated their fair
values at the year-end date.

Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

Rt 35 3R % B 5E (48)

33 BRI RS m

(d) gﬂ&ﬁ#%ﬁﬂﬁklﬁ — AR

(e)

(f)

ZRBABTTAHE - REEA
R RBERWE - RFHER
HAnEREEEERS -

Eﬁﬁﬁ‘%’&ﬂﬁklﬁ — AR

PS8 R B SRIE T A AR B 5T
B -ZEXARERR 2ER
AREREE -RFHEB ERQ
AEREEREERS -

FTEEEAEHTM

HEEBRBENXMAETEER
AEZHMBHWT -

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& Ha R4 25,172 22,228
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RARE AN —

TE R RGT 2 133 115

Share-based payments VARG 0 B AR 2 1 5K 3,334 —

28,639 22,343

(9) Indemnity — Group (9 WE—XKH

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group’s
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a result
of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of the land
and buildings owned by certain related companies by any
company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the relevant
authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of such land
and buildings.

B B R BRR H ) R {8 Bl A R 1R AN
KSEEMAKERAEREMEAA)
AxBH (AT 8RR ERE TH
BAREEN LI REFmER
KEENMERRERBRIFLR
BYFEHMHESEERE RE
REZEEBARLERZT L
REFHHRE L FERFHRAM
CoFindy: 3
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Five Year Financial Summary
LFEMBEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
FAT TAT FAT FAT FET

Revenue PN 536,104 781,750 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920
Net profit for the Year KRARHEE AEG

attributable to the owners F [ 41 F

of the Company 44,973 84,488 135,193 121,348 153,923

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT TAT FAT FAT THET
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Total assets WEE 538,812 769,772 950,877 955,456 1,137,434
Total liabilities BeE 402,950 571,994 674,508 585,190 610,709
Total equity FEZS 4B %8 135,862 197,778 276,369 370,266 526,725
Notes: et -

1. The consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 1. KEEE Z20183F K2014F 12 531 H I FF

and 2014 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 BB GFEAE AR A EBR2013F R20144F 12
December 2013 and 2014 are set out on pages 77 to 163 of this annual report. HO1ABEHEERBEHR A FIRETTE
2163H °

2. The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 31 2. K EEFE 20109 - 2011 4F K 20124F 12 A 31

December 2010, 2011 and 2012 and of the assets and liabilities as at 31 HIF FE R & HFRA LR R20104F - 2011 F
December 2010, 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the Prospectus. R2012F 12H31 A EER BEMBETI
BREBREFE

3. The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had 3. LB ET BN EE S EERZE
been in existence throughout these financial years. BB FE—E MR -
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TK GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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